
1 
 

Planning, Taxi Licensing & Rights of Way 
Committee 

 
Meeting Venue 
By Teams 

 

 
 

County Hall 
Llandrindod Wells 

Powys 
LD1 5LG 

 
Meeting Date 
Thursday, 12 November 2020 

 
Meeting Time 
10.00 am 

 
For further information please contact 
Carol Johnson 
01597826206 
carol.johnson@powys.gov.uk 

 5 November 2020 
 

 

Mae croeso i chi siarad yn Gymraeg neu yn Saesneg yn y cyfarfod, a bydd 
gwasanaeth cyfieithu ar y pryd ar gael.  
You are welcome to speak Welsh or English in the meeting, and a simultaneous 
translation service will be provided. 

 

AGENDA 

 
1.  APOLOGIES  

 
To receive apologies for absence. 
 
 

2.  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
To authorise the Chair to sign the minutes of the previous meeting of the Committee 
held on 1 October 2020 as a correct record. 
(To Follow) 
 

Planning 
 

 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
a) To receive any declarations of interest from Members relating to items to be 
considered on the agenda.  
b) To receive Members' requests that a record be made of their membership of 
town or community councils where discussion has taken place of matters for the 
consideration of this Committee.  
c) To receive declarations from Members of the Committee that they will be 
acting as 'Local Representative' in respect of an individual application being 
considered by the Committee.  

Public Document Pack



d) To note the details of Members of the County Council (who are not Members 
of the Committee) who will be acting as 'Local Representative' in respect of an 
individual application being considered by the Committee. 
 
 

4.  PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE COMMITTEE  

 
To consider the reports of the Head of Property, Planning and Public Protection and 
to make any necessary decisions thereon. 
 
(Pages 3 - 4) 
 

4.1.  Updates 

 Any Updates will be added to the Agenda, as a Supplementary Pack, 
wherever possible, prior to the meeting. 
(To Follow) 
 
 

4.2.  19/2055/FUL Pantoityn, Tirabad, Llangammarch Wells, LD4 4DP 

 (Pages 5 - 40) 
 
 

5.  DECISIONS OF THE HEAD OF PROPERTY, PLANNING AND PUBLIC 
PROTECTION  ON DELEGATED APPLICATIONS  

 
To receive for information a list of decisions made by the Head of Property, Planning 
and Public Protection under delegated powers. 
(Pages 41 - 82) 
 

Rights of Way 
 

 

6.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
To receive any declarations of interest in respect of the next item. 
 
 

7.  PROPOSED NEW PUBLIC PATH ORDERS FOR BRIDLEWAY 75 AND 
FOOTPATHS 3, 6, 56 AND 71 YSTRADGYNLAIS AND ABANDONMENT 
OF 2008 ORDERS  

 
To consider the report. 
(Pages 83 - 98) 
 
 
 



Planning, Taxi Licensing and Rights of Way Committee 
12 November 2020 

 
For the purpose of the Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, the 

background papers relating to each individual planning application constitute all the 
correspondence on the file as numbered in the left hand column. 

 
Applications for consideration by Committee: 

 
Application No:                                     Nature of Development: 
Community:                                          Location of Development: 
O.S. Grid Reference:                            Applicant: 
Date Received:                                     Recommendation of Head of Planning: 
 

19/2055/FUL 
 
Llangammarch Wells 
 
 
289141 245083 
 
 
16/12/2019 
 
 

Full: Conversion of barns to two dwellings, 
removal of nearby agricultural sheds, 
installation of sewage treatment plant and 
assiociated works  
 
Pantoityn, Tirabad, Llangammarch Wells 
Powys, LD4 4DP 
 
Col (rtd) T Van Rees 
 
Recommendation: 
Conditional Consent  
 

 

Page 3

4



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Planning, Taxi Licensing and Rights of Way Committee Report 
 

Application 
Number: 

19/2055/FUL 
 

Grid Ref: E: 289141 

N: 245083 

Community 
Council: 

 Llangammarch Community Valid Date: 18.12.2019 

 
Applicant: Col (retd) T Van Rees 
 
Location: Pantoityn, Tirabad, Llangammarch Wells, LD4 4DP,   

 
Proposal: Conversion of barns to two dwellings, removal of nearby agricultural sheds, 
installation of sewage treatment plant and associated works 
 
Application Type: Full Application 
 
 
The reason for Committee determination 
 
The applicant is a member of Council. 
 
Consultee Responses 
 
Consultee Received 

 
PCC-Building Control 2nd Jan 2020 

19/2055/FUL - Building Regulations approval will be required for this proposal. 

Wales & West Utilities - Plant Protection 

Team 

 

 

Ward Councillor  

 

PCC-Ecologist 12th Mar 2020 

Thank you for consulting me with regards to the additional information submitted in relation 

to planning application 19/2055/FUL which concerns an application for the conversion of 

barns to two dwellings, removal of nearby agricultural sheds, installation of sewage 

treatment plant and associated works at Pantoityn, Tirabad, Llangammarch Wells. 

Page 5

4.2



 

 

I have reviewed the revised Bat Assessment produced by Ecology Planning dated February 

2020. It is considered that the revisions in the report address the concerns raised in my 

response dated 13/02/2020. I also note that NRW are satisfied with the information 

provided as stated in their response dated 28/02/2020.  

Subject to the identified revised mitigation measures being implemented it is considered 

that the proposed development would not result in a negative impact to the favourable 

conservation status of bats roosting at the site. It is therefore recommended that the 

identified mitigation measures to minimise impacts to bats are secured through an 

appropriately worded planning condition. 

Wildlife Sensitive Lighting Plan  

Careful consideration will need to be given to any external lighting proposed to be erected 

on the proposed development. If external lighting is proposed then measures will need to 

be identified to minimise impacts to nocturnal wildlife commuting and foraging in the local 

area. It is therefore recommended that a Wildlife Sensitive Lighting Plan taking into account 

the recommendations identified in the BCT and ILP guidance note 

https://www.theilp.org.uk/documents/guidance-note-8-bats-and-artificial-lighting/ is 

secured through an appropriately worded condition. 

Landscape Planting Scheme 

If it is proposed to provide landscaping as part of the potential development consideration 

should be given to the development of a native landscape planting scheme. It is 

recommended that details of any landscaping proposed are submitted in a detailed 

Landscape Planting Scheme including proposed species mixes, planting and aftercare 

schedules. It is therefore recommended that a landscape planting scheme is secured 

through an appropriately worded condition.  

 

Biodiversity Enhancements 

 

In accordance with Part 1 Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016 Local Authorities 

are required to Maintain and Enhance biodiversity through all of its functions - this includes 

the planning process. It will therefore need to be demonstrated as to how the proposed 

development will incorporate biodiversity enhancements to ensure net biodiversity benefits 

through the proposed development. These measure could include: 

oProvision of bird and bat boxes including the details of the number, type and location of 

Page 6



 

 

these boxes; 

oA wildlife buffer strip and a scheme of appropriate management of these areas, 

hedgerows should be retained within buffer strips and should be unlit or lighting to be 

directed away from the hedgerows to create dark movement corridors for nocturnal wildlife 

through the site;  

oProvision of wildlife friendly landscape planting. 

Measures identified in the ecological report are considered to be necessary mitigation for 

the loss of roosting and nesting features therefore I recommend that a condition is included 

to secure the submission of a biodiversity enhancement plan. 

Therefore should you be minded to approve the application I recommend inclusion of the 

following conditions: 

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the mitigation measures 

and recommendations identified in the Bat Assessment 1593/01 b produced by Ecology 

Planning dated February 2020.The identified measures shall be adhered to and 

implemented in full and maintained thereafter.  

Reason: To comply with Powys County Council's LDP Policies DM2 and DM4 in relation to 

ecological qualities of the landscape and meet the requirements of Planning Policy Wales 

(Edition 10, December 2018), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part 1 Section 

6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 

No external lighting shall be installed unless a detailed external lighting design scheme has 

been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The external 

lighting scheme shall identify measures to avoid impacts on nocturnal wildlife in accordance 

with the recommendations outlined in the BCT and ILP Guidance Note 8 Bats and Artificial 

Lighting (12th September 2018). The development shall be carried out in accordance with 

the approved details. 

Reason: To comply with Powys County Council's LDP DM2 and DM7 in relation to The 

Natural Environment and to meet the requirements of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 10, 

December 2018), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part 1 Section 6 of the 

Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 

Prior to the commencement of development a detailed landscaping scheme shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted 

landscaping scheme shall include a scaled drawing and a written specification clearly 

describing the species, sizes, densities and planting numbers proposed as well as aftercare 

measures. Drawings must include accurate details of any existing trees and hedgerows to 

be retained with their location, species, size and condition. The development shall be 

Page 7



 

 

carried out in accordance with the approved details.  

Reason: To comply with Powys County Council's LDP Policy DM4 in relation to ecological 

qualities of the landscape and meet the requirements of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 10, 

December 2018), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part 1 Section 6 of the 

Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 

Prior to commencement of development, a detailed Biodiversity Enhancement Plan shall 

be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and implemented as approved and maintained 

thereafter unless otherwise agreed in writing with the LPA. 

Reason: To comply with Powys County Council's Policies LDP DM2 in relation to The 

Natural Environment and to meet the requirements of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 10, 

December 2018), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part 1 Section 6 of the 

Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 

In addition I recommend the inclusion of the following informatives; 

Warning: A European protected species (EPS) Licence is required for this development.  

This planning permission does not provide consent to undertake works that require an EPS 

licence.  

It is an offence to deliberately capture, kill or disturb EPS or to recklessly damage or destroy 

their breeding sites or resting places. If found guilty of any offences, you could be sent to 

prison for up to 6 months and/or receive an unlimited fine. 

To undertake the works within the law, you can obtain further information on the need for 

a licence from Natural Resources Wales on 0300 065 3000 or at 

https://naturalresources.wales/permits-and-permissions/protected-species-

licensing/european-protected-species-licensing/?lang=en 

Bats - Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and The Conservation of Habitats 

and Species Regulations 2017. 

It is an offence for any person to: 

o Intentionally kill, injure or take any bats. 

o Intentionally or recklessly damage, destroy or obstruct access to any place that a 

bat uses for shelter or protection. This is taken to mean all bat roosts whether bats are 

present or not.  

Under the Habitats Regulations it is an offence to: 

o Damage or destroy a breeding site or resting place of any bat. This is an absolute 

Page 8



 

 

offence - in other words, intent or recklessness does not have to be proved. 

 

The applicant is therefore reminded that it is an offence under the Wildlife and Countryside 

Act 1981 (as amended) and The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 

that works to trees or buildings where that work involves the disturbance of a bat is an 

offence if a licence has not been obtained from Natural Resources Wales. If a bat is 

discovered while work is being undertaken, all work must stop and advice sought from 

Natural Resources Wales and the Council's Ecologist. You can also call the National Bat 

helpline on 0345 1300 228 or email enquiries@bats.org.uk. 

Birds - Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) 

All nesting birds, their nests, eggs and young are protected by law and it is an offence to: 

o intentionally kill, injure or take any wild bird  

o intentionally take, damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird whilst it is in use or 

being built  

o intentionally take or destroy the egg of any wild bird 

o intentionally (or recklessly in England and Wales) disturb any wild bird listed on 

Schedule1 while it is nest building, or at a nest containing eggs or young, or disturb the 

dependent young of such a bird.  

The maximum penalty that can be imposed - in respect of a single bird, nest or egg - is a 

fine of up to 5,000 pounds, six months imprisonment or both.  

The applicant is therefore reminded that it is an offence under the Wildlife and Countryside 

Act 1981 (as amended) to remove or work on any hedge, tree or building where that work 

involves the taking, damaging or destruction of any nest of any wild bird while the nest is in 

use or being built (usually between late February and late August or late September in the 

case of swifts, swallows or house martins). If a nest is discovered while work is being 

undertaken, all work must stop and advice sought from Natural Resources Wales and the 

Council's Ecologist.  

Protected Species 

Work should halt immediately and Natural Resources Wales (NRW) contacted for advice 

in the event that protected species are discovered during the course of the development. 

To proceed without seeking the advice of NRW may result in an offence under the 

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 and/or the Wildlife & Countryside 

Page 9



 

 

Act 1981 (as amended) being committed. NRW can be contacted at: Tel: 0300 065 3000. 

 

Natural Resources Wales (North) DPAS 7th Feb 2020 

We have reviewed the mitiation strategy for bats dated 27.01.2020 and we still have 

concerns with regards to the detail of mitigation provided. 

The two main outbuildings illustrated on the document appear to be large modern metal 

outbuildings. This sort of structure is not normally considered appropriate for bat roosting 

especially if they are actively used for agricultural purposes, such as storage of machinery 

and intensive livestock rearing.  

Considering the outbuilding proposed for convertion hosts at least three different species 

of bats, one of which (Natterer's) has more specific roosting requirements than the more 

common pipistrelle bats, we would recommend that the location of the replacement roost 

for Natterer's is clearly identified at this stage and an appropriate mitigation plan is 

submitted for your consideration prior to determination. 

A comprehensive mitigation plan will be required for the licence application and therefore 

an effort to identify an appropriate roosting alternative for bats remains a requirement for 

establishing any likely significant impact of the species in consideration. Positioning of any 

exterior lighting will also be required at licensing stage in line with the report 

recommendations. If details of lighting provisions are not made available to you prior to 

determination, we would be happy for the lighting scheme to be secured via appropriately 

worded planning condition. 

We are still unable to confirm the proposal will not be detrimental to the maintenance of the 

population of the species concerned at a favourable conservation status in its natural range. 

We will be able to review our position upon receipt of additional information as requested 

above. 

 

PCC-Ecologist 13th Feb 2020 

Thank you for consulting me with regards to planning application 19/2055/FUL which 

concerns an application for the conversion of barns to two dwellings, removal of nearby 

agricultural sheds, installation of sewage treatment plant and associated works at 

Pantoityn, Tirabad, Llangammarch Wells.  

I have reviewed the proposed plans, aerial images as well as local records of protected 

and priority species and designated sites within 500m of the proposed development.  

Page 10



 

 

The data search identified 32 records of protected and priority species within 500m of the 

proposed development with no records found for the site itself. Species recorded within 

500m of the proposed development include barn owl and starling.  

No statutory or non-statutory designated sites were identified within 500m of the proposed 

development.  

The proposed development is located on the site of an existing farmyard and is likely to 

impact areas of hard standing and amenity planting, habitats considered to be of relatively 

low ecological value.  

Bats - European Protected Species  

The proposed development requires the conversion of an existing barn, consideration 

therefore has been given to the potential for the building to support roosting bats - bats 

being a European protected species - and for the proposed development to impact roosting 

bats. 

I have reviewed the Bat Assessment Report produced by Ecology Planning dated 

November 2019.  

The survey undertaken included internal and external inspections of the building affected 

by the proposed development to identify any potential features suitable to provide access 

into the structure and/or to support roosting bats. 

The preliminary survey which was undertaken on 9th July 2019 identified possible roosting 

sites in gaps in the stonework and signs of bats in the form of droppings in the rear lean-to 

structure.  

 

Two activity surveys were undertaken on 9th July (dawn re-entry) 2019 and 11th August 

2019 (dusk emergence). Surveys confirmed that the existing barn is being utilised by 

common pipistrelle, Natterer's and brown long-eared bats.  

Following the findings of the activity surveys - the report identifies that the proposed 

development will result in the disturbance, loss of roost locations and destruction of resting 

places, as such a European Protected Species Development Licence will be required. 

Necessary mitigation measures have been identified in sections 1.64-1.79 of the report. 

Measures include; 

o Timing of works  

o Works impacting any stonework is to be undertaken OUTSIDE the hibernation 

Page 11



 

 

period (November to march inclusive) 

o Appointment of an Ecological Clerk of Works (ECW) 

o All possible roost features are to be inspected by a suitably qualified ecologist prior 

to commencement of works  

o Workers are to receive a 'Tool Box Talk' prior to commencement of works 

o Retention of roost sites in the existing stone work (to be determined by the ecologist) 

o Installation of new roosting features in the design of the conversion to include; 

o Two bat tubes  

o Four Slimline bat boxes  

o Four Improved cavity bat boxes  

o Three Schwegler bat boxes (to be erected on trees on the development site) 

o Adoption of a wildlife friendly lighting scheme 

Whilst details of bat mitigation have been provided within the report these measures do not 

appear to have been incorporated on any of the proposed plans, I note that NRW have also 

raised concerns and have requested further information and amended proposed drawings 

to incorporate appropriate design features for bat mitigation in their response dated 

20/01/2020. I agree with the comments made by NRW therefore, it is considered in the 

absence of detailed plans indicating the proposed mitigation that there is insufficient 

information to demonstrate that the potential impacts would not result in a negative impact 

to the favourable conservation status of all species of bats identified as roosting at the site, 

bats being European protected species and material consideration in the planning process, 

to determine this application.  

Biodiversity Enhancements 

Given the number of bat species found on the proposed development site it is considered 

that the above measures are considered necessary to ensure that there will be negative 

impact to the favourable conservation status of bats roosting at the site i.e. the proposed 

measures are mitigation for the impact of the development. In order to comply with Part 1 

Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016 - Local Authorities are required to Maintain 

and Enhance biodiversity through all of its functions - this includes the planning process - 

therefore further information regarding proposed enhancement measures will be required. 

It will therefore need to be demonstrated as to how the proposed development will 

incorporate biodiversity enhancements to ensure net biodiversity benefits through the 

Page 12



 

 

proposed development. These measure could include: 

oProvision of bird and bat boxes including the details of the number, type and location of 

these boxes - these would need to be in addition to any features identified as mitigation for 

the proposed development; 

oA wildlife buffer strip and a scheme of appropriate management of these areas, 

hedgerows should be retained within buffer strips and should be unlit or lighting to be 

directed away from the hedgerows to create dark movement corridors for nocturnal wildlife 

through the site;  

oProvision of wildlife friendly landscape planting. 

Details of any proposed biodiversity enhancements will need to be included with any 

submitted application, the features proposed will need to be specific (i.e. details regarding 

locations, dimensions and numbers will need to be provided) and achievable. 

 

Further details regarding biodiversity and requirements associated with planning 

applications can be found in the Powys Local Development Plan (2011 to 2026) 

Supplementary Planning Guidance Biodiversity and Geodiversity (Adopted October 2018) 

which can be found at https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/4907/LDP-Supplementary-Planning-

Guidance-SPG  

 

Wildlife Sensitive Lighting PlanCareful consideration will need to be given to any external 

lighting design provided through the proposed development, measures will need to be 

identified to minimise impacts to nocturnal wildlife commuting and foraging in the local area. 

This information could be secured through a planning condition, however the submission 

of a Wildlife Sensitive Lighting Plan with a planning application would avoid the need for a 

pre-commencement condition requiring this information. Any external lighting proposed will 

need to demonstrate compliance with the recommendations outlined in the BCT and ILP 

Guidance Note 8 Bats and Artificial Lighting (12th September 2018) full details can be found 

at https://www.theilp.org.uk/documents/guidance-note-8-bats-and-artificial-lighting/.  

 

Landscape Planting Scheme 

If it is proposed to provide landscaping as part of the potential development consideration 

should be given to the development of a native landscape planting scheme. It is 

recommended that details of any landscaping proposed are submitted in a detailed 

Page 13



 

 

Landscape Planting Scheme including proposed species mixes, planting and aftercare 

schedules. A Landscaping Plan could be secured through a planning condition, however 

as further information has been requested the provisions of details submitted at this stage 

would avoid the need for a pre-commencement condition requiring this information.  

 

Community Council  

No comments received at the time of writing this report. 

 

Natural Resources Wales (North) DPAS 28th Feb 2020 

We continue to have significant concerns with the proposed development as submitted. 

We recommend you should only grant planning permission if you include the following 

documents within the condition identifying approved plans and documents on the decision 

notice: 

o Ecology Planning, 1593/01 b, 11 February 2020, Bat Assessment. 

Protected Species 

We have reviewed the amended 'Bat Assessment' report and note that additional 

information and bat mitigation plans have been included in the document. 

We welcome the proposed retention of bat roosting opportunities for Myotis and pipistrelle 

species in dedicated bat boxes within the wall structure of the converted barn, and the 

inclusion of additional mitigation measures within the remaining agricultural buildings. 

On the basis of the amended report, we do not consider that the development is likely to 

be detrimental to the maintenance of the population of the species concerned at a 

favourable conservation status in its natural range provided all the recommendations made 

in the bat report are secured via appropriately worded condition and implemented. 

Ein cyf/Our ref: CAS-109012-H6N7 

Eich cyf/Your ref: 19/2055/FUL 

Swyddfa Llywodraeth Cymru/Welsh 

Government Building, 

Rhodfa Padarn, 

Page 14



 

 

Llanbadarn Fawr, 

Aberystwyth 

SY23 3UR 

northplanning@cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk 

03000 654696 

In line with the letter issued by Welsh Government on 1st March 2018, we request that the 

following informative is attached to any planning permission granted by your Authority: 

Warning: An European protected species (EPS) Licence is required for this development. 

This planning permission does not provide consent to undertake works that require an EPS 

licence. 

It is an offence to deliberately capture, kill or disturb EPS or to damage or destroy their 

breeding sites or resting places. If found guilty of any offences, you could be sent to prison 

for up to 6 months and/or receive an unlimited fine. 

To undertake the works within the law, you can obtain further information on the need for 

a licence from Natural Resources Wales on 0300 065 3000 or at 

https://naturalresources.wales/conservation-biodiversity-and-wildlife/european-protected-

species/?lang+en 

Development should not be commenced until the Applicant has been granted a licence by 

Natural Resources Wales pursuant to Regulation 55 of the Conservation of Habitats and 

Species Regulations (2017) authorizing the specified activity/development to go ahead. 

 

PCC-Contaminated Land Officer 10th Jan 2020 

In relation to planning application, the following advice is provided for the consideration of 

Development Control. 

Advice 

1. The application proposal involves the conversion of an agricultural building to form a 

residential unit. Agricultural buildings and land could contain potential sources of 

contamination, depending on what they were used for in the past, such as: pesticides, fuels 

and oils, slurry tanks and pits, fire sites, animal burial pits or other buried waste, fertiliser, 

sheep dip pits, asbestos, old machinery, waste chemical drums and ammunition. Any 

Page 15



 

 

building constructed before 2000 may have asbestos products which should be considered. 

2. Paragraph 6.9.14, of Chapter 6 'Distinctive and Natural Places', of the Welsh 

Government document 'Planning Policy Wales' (2018) states: "Responsibility for 

determining the extent and effects of surface and subsurface risks remains with the 

developer. It is for the developer to ensure that the land is suitable for the development 

proposed, as a planning authority does not have a duty of care to landowners." 

3. In respect of contaminated land paragraph 5.55, of the Welsh Government (WG) circular 

'The Use of Planning Conditions for Development Management' (ref: WGC 016/2014), 

states that: "Conditions might also be imposed requiring the developer to draw to the 

attention of the planning authority the presence of significant unsuspected contamination 

encountered during redevelopment". Furthermore, in paragraph 5.56 of the WG circular 

(ref: WGC 016/2014) it is stated: "The level of work required must be proportionate to the 

problems that are envisaged and the more onerous conditions should not be imposed as a 

matter of course." 

4. Based on the available information and current planning guidance, it is recommended 

that the following condition and note, to the applicant, are attached to any permission 

granted for planning application: 

Potential Contamination 

In the event that the presence of contamination is encountered when carrying out the 

approved development immediate contact must be made with the local planning authority 

and works must cease in that area. An investigation and risk assessment must be 

undertaken and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared, 

which is subject to the approval in writing of the local planning authority. 

Following completion of the remedial works identified in the approved remediation scheme, 

a verification report that demonstrates compliance with the agreed remediation objectives 

and criteria shall be produced, and is subject to the written approval of the local planning 

authority, prior to commencement of use of the development. 

 

Welsh Water 7th Jan 2020 

There is no public sewerage system in this area. Any new development will require the 

provision of satisfactory alternative facilities for sewage disposal. 

 

PCC-(S) Highways 21st Jan 2020 

Page 16



 

 

Thank you for consulting the Highway Authority (HA) on this planning application, which 

seeks to convert an existing agricultural building to provide an additional two dwellings at 

Pantoityn, Llangammarch Wells. 

This site is served from a private access track which connects to the C0028 county 

highway. The C0028 county highway connects Cefn Gorwydd to Tirabad and beyond and 

is well used. Access visibility from the private access along the C0028 is severely 

constrained by the adjoining hedgerows, which limits the available visibility to circa 10m in 

each direction from a 2.4m setback, which is suitable for speeds of just 10mph.  

It is noted that the existing farm operations will not be affected by the proposals and as 

such, the additional dwellings will likely generate circa 12-20 addition vehicular movements 

to and from the access and along the C0028 county highway, on a daily basis.  The HA 

contends that the existing access is not suitable to accommodate those additional vehicular 

movements, unless a modest access visibility improvement is incorporated into the 

scheme. From the information supplied, it would appear that sufficient land is available to 

provide a 2.4m x 59m visibility improvement in each direction, which is suitable for speeds 

of 37mph. 

I trust these measures can be incorporated into the scheme before the application is 

determined. 

 

 

PCC-Rights Of Way Senior Manager 7th Jan 2020 

The applicant is advised that public footpath 15 runs through the development and the 

Service therefore provides the following advice regarding the footpath should the 

development receive planning permission. 

o Development over, or illegal interference with, a public right of way, is a criminal 

offence and enforcement action will be taken against a developer who ignores the presence 

of affected public rights of way. This includes temporary obstructions such as rubble 

mounds, building materials, parked vehicles etc.   

o Landscaping & Surfacing - Advice will need to be sought before interfering or 

surfacing a public right of way.  

o New fencing or boundaries - The developer will need to seek a licence for a new 

structure if intending to create a boundary across a public footpath or bridleway. We cannot 

authorise a structure across a Restricted Byway or Byway Open to All Traffic. 

Page 17



 

 

o Temporary closures - The developer can seek a temporary closure of a public right 

of way from the council if they feel the public may be at risk during development.   

o Legal Diversion - If development directly affects a public right of way, the developer 

will need to seek advice and apply for a legal diversion from the Council. No development 

can take place on a public right of way until a legal order is confirmed and the process may 

take at least 6 months.  For more information please discuss with Countryside Services at 

the earliest available opportunity.  

 

Environmental Protection 3rd Jan 2020 

Environmental Protection have no objections to the application however the applicant 

should note the following: 

Any new system must comply with document H2 of the Building Regulations relating to 

design and installation of the foul drainage system 

 

Natural Resources Wales (North) DPAS 20th Jan 2020 

Thank you for consulting Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru / Natural Resources Wales (NRW) about 

the above, which we received on 02/01/2020. 

We have significant concerns with the proposed development as submitted. We 

recommend you should only grant planning permission if the following requirement is met. 

Otherwise, we would object to this planning application. 

Requirement 1 - bats: The submission of additional information and amended proposed 

drawings to incorporate appropriate design features for bat mitigation. 

Protected Species 

We note that the bat report submitted in support of the above application (Bat Assessment 

dated 15 November 2019 by Ecology Planning) has identified that three species of bats 

(Natterer's, Common pipistrelle and Brown Long-eared) are present at the application site. 

In this case, the bat report concludes that the proposal is likely to harm or disturb the bats 

or their breeding sites and resting places at this site and will, therefore, require a licence. 

Bats and their breeding sites and resting places are protected under the Conservation of 

Habitats and Species Regulations 2017. Where bats are present and a development 

proposal is likely to contravene the legal protection they are afforded, the development may 

Page 18



 

 

only proceed under licence issued by Natural Resources Wales, having satisfied the three 

requirements set out in the legislation. A licence may only be authorised if: 

i. the development works to be authorised are for the purpose of preserving public health 

or safety, or for other imperative reasons of overriding public interest, including those of a 

social or economic nature and beneficial consequences of primary importance for the 

environment. 

ii. There is no satisfactory alternative and 

iii. The action authorised will not be detrimental to the maintenance of the population of the 

species concerned at a favourable conservation status in its natural range. 

Paragraph 6.3.7 of Technical Advice Note 5: Nature Conservation and Planning (TAN5) 

states that your Authority should not grant planning permission without having satisfied 

itself that the proposed development either would not impact adversely on any bats on the 

site or that, in its opinion, all three conditions for the eventual grant of a licence are likely to 

be satisfied. 

Although a bat report has been submitted, we do not consider that there is adequate 

information to assess potential effects of the proposed development on bats present at this 

site. 

Point 1.76 of the Discussion and Recommendations section of the report states that the 

loss of bat roosting locations and night feeding perch within the barns to be converted will 

be mitigated by erecting several different types of bat boxes within other retained 

agricultural buildings but it does not specify which ones. The proposal includes the 

demolition of several outbuildings at this farm complex and therefore it is not clear at this 

stage if appropriate alternative roosting locations can be provided at the site. 

We would recommend that retention of bat roosting opportunities for Myotis and pipistrelle 

species is kept within the roof structure/attic of the converted barn, but if bat boxes are to 

be used, additional details of the proposed locations will need to be provided at this stage 

and clearly indicated on the proposed block plan. 

Please note that any changes to plans between planning consent and the licence 

application may affect the outcome of a licence application. 

We are therefore currently unable to confirm the proposal will not be detrimental to the 

maintenance of the population of the species concerned at a favourable conservation 

status in its natural range. We will be able to review our position upon receipt of additional 

information. 

Page 19



 

 

Protected Sites 

From the information provided, the scale and nature of the proposal, we consider that the 

proposal is not likely to have a significant effect on a SAC, SPA or Ramsar. 

Our advice may change should modifications be made to the proposed development prior 

to the determination of the application. If there are any changes to the proposed 

development which may affect the consideration of potential environmental impacts, please 

consult us again before you determine the application. 

Other Matters 

Our comments above only relate specifically to matters included on our consultation topic 

list, Development Planning Advisory Service: Consultation Topics (September 2018), 

which is published on our website. We have not considered potential effects on other 

matters and do not rule out the potential for the proposed development to affect other 

environmental interests. 

We advise the applicant that, in addition to planning permission, it is their responsibility to 

ensure they secure all other permits/consents/licences relevant to their development. 

Please refer to our website for further details. 

Advice for the developer: 

Foul Drainage 

We note the proposal is to connect the foul drainage to the a new package treatment plant. 

With respect to the discharge of effluent to ground or surface water, the Applicant will need 

to apply for an environmental permit or register an exemption with us. Septic tanks and 

small sewage treatment works may be registered as exempt from the requirement to obtain 

an environmental permit if certain criteria are met. 

Please note, should a permit be required, further information may be required as part of 

that application and the Applicant is therefore advised to hold pre-application discussions 

with our Permitting Team on 0300 065 3000, at the earliest opportunity, to try to ensure 

that there is no conflict between any planning permission granted and the permit 

requirements. It is important to note that a grant of planning permission does not guarantee 

that a permit will be granted, should a proposal be deemed to be unacceptable (either 

because of environmental risk or because upon further investigation, a connection to mains 

sewer was feasible). The Applicant should ensure that they have all the required 

permissions, consents, permits and any other approvals in place prior to commencement 

of works on the site. 

Page 20



 

 

More information, including a step by step guide to registering and the relevant application 

forms are available on our website. Where private sewage treatment/disposal facilities are 

utilised, they must be installed and maintained in accordance with British Standards 6297 

and Approved Document H of the Building Regulations. We also refer the Applicant to the 

Guidance for Pollution Prevention 4 on the NetRegs website, which provides further 

information. 

Ordinary Watercourse Consent 

Installation of a new soakaway/drainage system with an outfall to an ordinary watercourse 

may require a Flood Defence Consent from Powys CC, as the Lead Local Flood Authority 

in this area. Please see https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/4661/Ordinary-Watercourses-

Applying-for-consent-for-works for more information or contact 

land.drainage@Powys.gov.uk for more details. 

 

PCC-(S) Highways 3rd Feb 2020 

Thank you for re-consulting the Highway Authority (HA) on this planning application. 

The additional information contained on submitted Drawing 19/4430/6 adequately 

addresses the concerns previously raised by the HA. 

Accordingly the HA recommends that the following conditions be attached to any consent 

granted. 

1. Prior to the occupation of any of the dwellings herby approved the access shall be 

constructed in accordance with the detail shown on the approved Drawing 19/4430/6  so 

that there is clear visibility from a point 1.05 metres above ground level at the centre of the 

access and 2.4 metres distant from the edge of the adjoining carriageway, to points 0.6 

metres above ground level at the edge of the adjoining carriageway and 59 metres distant 

in each direction measured from the centre of the access along the edge of the adjoining 

carriageway.  Nothing shall be planted, erected or allowed to grow on the area(s) of land 

so formed that would obstruct the visibility and the visibility shall be maintained free from 

obstruction for as long as the development hereby permitted remains in existence. 

2. Upon formation of the visibility splays as detailed above the centreline of any new 

or relocated hedge should be positioned not less than 1.0 metre to the rear of the visibility 

splay and retained in this position as long as the development remains in existence. 

 

 

Page 21



 

 

Powys Ecologist                                                                                                   4th Nov 2020 

RE 19/2055/FUL which concerns an application for conversion of barns to two dwellings, 

removal of nearby agricultural sheds, installation of sewage treatment plant and associated 

works at Pantoityn, Tirabad, Llangammarch Wells, LD4 4DP. 

The River Wye Special Area for Conservation (SAC) is located approximately 510m from 

the proposed development. Taking into account the nature, scale and location of the 

proposed development, it is considered unlikely that the proposed development would 

result in any adverse impacts on the River Wye SAC and/or its associated features. 

Representations 
 
No third party comments received. 
 
Planning History 
 

n/a    
 
Principal Planning Constraints 
 

 

 
Principal Planning Policies 
 

Policy Policy Description Year Local Plan 
 
PPW Planning Policy Wales 

(Edition 10, December 
2018) 

 National Policy 

 
TAN5 Nature Conservation and 

Planning 
 National Policy 

 
TAN6 Planning for Sustainable 

Rural Community 
 National Policy 

 
TAN18 Transport  National Policy 

 
SP7 Safeguarding of Strategic 

Resources and Assets 
 National Policy 

 
DM2 The Natural Environment  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM4 Landscape  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 

Right of Way nearby 073/15/1 

Page 22



 

 

 
DM7 Dark Skies and External 

Lighting 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM13 Design and Resources  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SP5 Settlement Hierarchy  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SP6 Distribution of Growth 

across the Settlement 
Hierarchy 

 Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 

 
H1 Housing Development 

Proposals 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
T1 Travel, Traffic and 

Transport Infrastructure 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
RES SPG Residential Design 

Guide (2020) 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SPGBIO Biodiversity and 

Geodiversity SPG (2018) 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SPGLAN Landscape SPG  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
Other Legislative Considerations 
 

Crime and Disorder Act 1998  
 
Equality Act 2010  
 
Planning (Wales) Act 2015 (Welsh language)  
 
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
 
Marine and Coastal Access Act 2009 
 

 
Officer Appraisal 
 
Site Location and Description 
 
The application site lies within the community area of Llanwrtyd Wells and is located 

Page 23



 

 

within the open countryside as defined by the Powys Local Development Plan (2011-
2026). The application site is within a farm complex that is accessed off the classified 
C0028 road approximately 1km west of Cefngorwydd.  
 
This application seeks consent for the conversion of adjoining barns to two dwellings 
together with the removal of adjacent agricultural sheds and the installation of a sewage 
treatment plant. The existing barns comprise a combination of a traditional stone 
building and an adjoining more modern steel frame building which are unsuitable for 
current farming practices.  
 
Principle of Development 
 
In considering this application the creation of dwellings in the open countryside must be 
considered. In considering the principle of the proposed development, consideration is 
given to Planning Policy Wales (ed. 10, 2018), Technical Advice Note 6 - Planning for 
Sustainable Rural Communities (2010) and Technical Advice Note 23 - Economic 
Development (2014) and the adopted Powys LDP (2018), in particular policies SP6 and 
H1. 
 
PPW (ed. 10) places emphasis on the consideration of sustainability in the planning 
process and this includes re-use, reducing waste and the efficient use of land. 
Paragraph 5.11.7 promotes the use of existing buildings wherever possible.  
 
TAN6 and TAN23 support the conversion of buildings for residential use. Local 
Development Plan policies SP6 and H1 established the principle of development for any 
proposal relating to residential development. For housing development in the open 
countryside Policy SP6 says only housing development that complies with the national 
exceptions policies as set out in PPW and TAN 6 will be permitted in the Open 
Countryside and that development proposals will need to comply with relevant national 
policy including PPW and TANs including TAN6: Planning for Sustainable Rural 
Communities and TAN 23: Economic Development. 
 
Policy H1 says: 
 
“In the Open Countryside:  
  
i. Where the development relates to a need for housing which meets current national 
policy on housing in the open countryside; or  
ii. Where the development relates to the conversion of a rural building(s) which accords 
with the current national policy on the sustainable re-use of rural buildings; or  
iii. Where the development relates to the renovation of a former abandoned dwelling in 
accordance with Policy H8.”   
 
The proposed development relates to the conversion of rural buildings and as such 
complies with criterion (ii) of LDP Policy H1. Consideration must be given therefore to 
whether the proposal accords with national policy on the sustainable re-use of rural 

Page 24



 

 

buildings. TAN 6 and TAN 23 are the relevant national policies that must be considered 
when considering the re-use and adaption of existing rural buildings. 
 
TAN 6 states the following;  
 
“3.2 Re-use/adaptation of rural buildings 
 
3.2.1 When assessing planning applications for the re-use or adaptation of a rural 
building, the primary consideration should be whether the nature and extent of the new 
use proposed for the building is acceptable in planning terms. It should not normally be 
necessary to consider whether a building is no longer needed for its present agricultural 
or other purposes (although in the case of a tenanted agricultural building, the value in 
planning terms of the existing use should be taken into consideration)…… 
 
3.2.3 Conversion proposals should respect the landscape and local building styles and 
materials. If a planning application is submitted for the re-use of a building which the 
planning authority considers has a significant adverse effect on the landscape in terms 
of visual amenity, it may be appropriate in connection with any proposed structural 
changes to impose conditions to secure an improvement in the external appearance of 
the building.” 
 
TAN 23 states the following;  
 
“3.2.1  The re-use and adaptation of existing rural buildings has an important role in 
meeting the needs of rural areas for commercial and industrial development, and 
tourism, sport and recreation. In recognising this, local planning authorities are expected 
to adopt a positive approach to the conversion of rural buildings for business re-use, 
especially those buildings located within or adjoining farm building complexes on the 
basis that:  
• they are suitable for the specific use;  
• conversion does not lead to dispersal of activity on such scale as to prejudice 
town and village vitality;  
• their form, bulk and general design are in keeping with their surroundings;  
• imposing conditions on a planning permission overcomes any planning 
objections, for example on environmental or traffic grounds, which would otherwise 
outweigh the advantage of re-use;  
• if the buildings are in the open countryside, they are capable of conversion 
without major or complete reconstruction;  
• conversion does not result in unacceptable impacts upon the structure, form, 
character or setting where the building is of historic and / or architectural interest.  
 
3.2.2  Residential conversion of rural buildings which have ceased to be used for 
industrial or commercial purposes, including agriculture, need to be assessed on their 
impact including their impact on the fabric and character of historic buildings. In areas 
where the creation of local employment is a priority, local planning authorities may 
include policies within the development plan which prohibit residential re-use unless:  

Page 25



 

 

• The applicant has made every reasonable attempt to secure suitable business 
re-use and the application is supported by a statement of the efforts which have been 
made; or 
• Residential conversion is a subordinate part of a scheme for business re-use; or 
• The resulting housing will contribute to an identified need for affordable housing 
for local need.” 
 
The adopted Powys LDP supports and reflects this national planning policy framework. 
In paragraph 3.2.29 it supports the re-use of rural buildings for economic and residential 
purposes where justified. In addition, paragraph 4.1.5 reiterates the position of the LDP 
in relation to the national policy framework outlined above saying, “No specific policy is 
included on the re-use / adaptation of rural buildings, or on agricultural development, 
because PPW, TAN 6 and TAN 23 provide adequate policy. The Council has not 
prioritised economic reuses above other uses and supports a flexible approach to re-
use and adaptation of rural buildings.” 
 
The application under consideration seeks a change of use and conversion of two 
adjoining existing, agricultural buildings to residential use. TAN 6 in paragraph 3.2.1 
says, “the primary consideration should be whether the nature and extent of the new 
use proposed for the building is acceptable in planning terms. It should not normally be 
necessary to consider whether a building is no longer needed for its present agricultural 
or other purposes”. It is not necessary therefore, to consider whether the existing 
buildings are needed any more as agricultural buildings and it is considered that the 
proposed residential use is compliant with the framework set out in PPW, TAN 6 and 
TAN 23 and so is acceptable in planning terms. 
 
In light of the above therefore, it is considered that the principle of development is 
compliant with PPW, TAN 6, TAN 23 and the Powys LDP including policies SP6, H1. 
 
Scale, Design and Appearance  
 
Policy DM13 of the Powys Local Development Plan seeks to ensure that development 
is designed to complement and/or enhance the character of the surrounding area in 
terms of siting, appearance, integration, scale, height, massing and design detail. 
Development proposals should be able to demonstrate good quality design. 
Developments should not have an unacceptable detrimental impact upon the amenities 
enjoyed by the occupants or users of nearby properties by means of noise, dust, air 
pollution, litter, odour, hours of operation, overlooking or any other planning matter.  
 
The development proposal includes the conversion of two adjoining farm buildings set in 
an isolated complex that also includes some more modern, metal clad buildings. Some 
of these buildings/barns are to be removed to improve residential amenity as part of the 
application. The buildings under consideration for conversion comprise a traditional 
stone-built building with an adjoining more modern steel frame structure. The proposed 
conversion will provide two adjoining three-bedroom dwellings on the original footprint 
with the existing height and mass dimensions. 

Page 26



 

 

 
The proposed design has been designed to retain as far as possible the agricultural 
elements of the existing buildings. The traditional stone building will be retained under a 
slate roof whereas the steel frame section will be clad in timber cladding to replicate 
Yorkshire Boarding under a box profile sheeting roof. New window and door openings 
have been kept to a minimum and include some roof lights but these reflect the existing 
clear roof sheets on the modern section.  
 
It is considered that the proposed conversion scheme for the barns fundamentally 
retains the traditional character and appearance of the buildings and thus integrates 
within the immediate context and surrounding landscape. The original dimensions and 
footprints are largely being retained and so it is considered that the proposal is 
acceptable in terms of siting, appearance, integration, scale, height, massing and 
design detail.  
 
In light of the above observations, it is considered that the proposed development is in 
accordance with relevant planning policies, particularly the Powys Local Development 
Plan policy DM13 and TAN 6. 
 
 
Highways Safety and Movement 
 
Policies DM13 (Criterion 10) and T1 of the Powys Local Development Plan requires that 
all development proposals should meet all highway access requirements, (for all 
transport users), vehicular parking standards and demonstrate that the strategic and 
local highway network can absorb the traffic impacts of the development without 
adversely affecting the safe and efficient flow of traffic on the network or that traffic 
impacts can be managed to acceptable levels to reduce and mitigate any adverse 
impacts from the development.  
 
The Highways Authority have been consulted and following revised plans being 
submitted have no objections subject to a number of appropriate conditions relating to 
an improved visibility splay being attached. 
 
In light of the above and subject to the attachment of relevant conditions, it is 
considered that the proposed development complies with policies DM13 and T1. 
 
Residential Amenity 
 
In considering the amenities enjoyed by the occupiers of neighbouring properties and 
the proposed properties themselves, consideration has been given to the LDP policy 
DM13 (criterion 11) and the Powys Residential Design Supplementary Planning 
Guidance (2020). 
 
The proposed development is situated in an isolated location and due to the 
surrounding topography is not widely visible with rising ground behind the site. The 

Page 27



 

 

nearest neighbouring property not associated with the development is some 300m to 
the south west and is unlikely to be impacted by the proposed development. The 
original farmhouse is situated to the north east of the proposed development within the 
existing farm complex but due to the alignment of the barns it is not anticipated there 
will be any unacceptable amenity impacts.  It is considered therefore that there will be 
no overlooking or any loss of privacy or any other unacceptable impact upon residential 
amenity. 
 
The existing, modern agricultural buildings are to be removed from the site to enable the 
development so will not pose any problems normally associated with an agricultural 
setting. 
 
In light of the above, it is considered that the proposed development complies with 
relevant planning policy. 
 
Landscape Impact 
 
Policy DM4 of the Powys Local Development Plan, states that development proposals, 
“must not, individually or cumulatively, have an unacceptable adverse effect, on the 
valued characteristics and qualities of the Powys landscape.” 
 
With regard to Landmap the site lies within the Irfon Valley (west) Aspect Area and is 
described as: 
 
“Gentle undulating pastoral landscape cut through by the Rivers of Irfon, Cammarch 
and Dulas creating substantial areas of low lying marshy pasture and some wetland. 
The area runs down from the Mynydd Eppynt scarp slope to the south. The low hills 
reach 282mAOD while the valley bottom of the Irfon lies at 160mAOD to the east. Fields 
are generally of medium size and are enclosed by a combination of outgrown and 
trimmed hedges. Mature trees in the hedgerows create enclosure and structure in the 
landscape. The wetter areas are fringed with birch in gappy hedgerows. Deciduous 
woodland is found particularly to the south and east of the area on steep slopes and 
hillsides, often associated with watercourses, where it is most attractive. The odd small 
coniferous plantation reinforces the upland character of the area. This is a settled 
landscape. The pleasant settlements of Llanwrtyd Wells and Llangamarch Wells 
straddle the River Irfon. Farmsteads are scattered across the area. The A483 runs 
along the northern fringes with some associated linear development, reducing the 
tranquillity of the corridor of land adjacent.” 
 
It is classified as being of being of moderate visual and sensory value. Other 
evaluations are: 
 
Geological Landscape – Cefngorwydd - moderate 
Landscape Habitats – Llanwrtyd Wells - moderate 
Historic Landscape -  Dyffryn Irfon - n/a 
Cultural Landscape – Irfon Valley (west) – n/a 

Page 28



 

 

 
The moderate visual and sensory value is noted but the proposed development 
concerns the change of use of existing farm buildings so the structures are already in 
situ in this location. Clearly, the conversion of the buildings will have some impact upon 
the landscape due to the changes proposed as part of the conversion, for example, the 
introduction of glass into the buildings. The impact however, is not considered to be 
damaging to the wider landscape as the complex is located in a relatively well-screened 
location situated with rising ground to the rear. Modern farm buildings are to be 
removed leaving the traditional stone structure in situ which will not have an adverse 
impact on the landscape. 
 
It is considered that the proposed development in terms of siting, scale, design and 
integration fundamentally accords with policy DM4. 
 
 
Ecology and Biodiversity 
 
With respect to biodiversity, specific reference is made to LDP policy DM2 which seeks 
to maintain biodiversity and safeguard protected sites. In accordance with TAN 5: 
Nature, Conservation and Planning, and Powys LDP Policy DM2: The Natural 
Environment, as part of the planning process Powys LPA should ensure that there is no 
net loss of biodiversity or unacceptable damage to a biodiversity feature and under Part 
1, Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016 Local Authorities are required to 
maintain and enhance biodiversity so any submission should incorporate enhancement 
proposals. 
 
The River Wye Special Area for Conservation (SAC) is located approximately 510m 
from the proposed development. Taking into account the nature, scale and location of 
the proposed development, the Ecologist has confirmed that it is unlikely that the 
proposed development would result in any adverse impacts on the River Wye SAC 
and/or its associated features. 
 
The Ecologist reviewed the proposed plans and identified 32 records of protected and 
priority species within 500m of the proposed development - no records were for the site 
itself. 
 
No statutory or non-statutory designated sites were identified within 500m of the 
proposed development.  
 
The proposed development is located on the site of an existing farmyard and is likely to 
impact areas of hard standing and amenity planting, habitats considered to be of 
relatively low ecological value.  
 
A Bat Assessment Report was submitted in support of the application. Surveys 
confirmed that the existing barn is being utilised by common pipistrelle, Natterer’s and 
brown long-eared bats.  

Page 29



 

 

 
Following the findings of the activity surveys - the report identifies that the proposed 
development will result in the disturbance, loss of roost locations and destruction of 
resting places, and as such a European Protected Species Development Licence will be 
required. 
 
An amended Report including revised mitigation measures was submitted and subject 
to the identified revised mitigation measures being implemented it is considered that the 
proposed development would not result in a negative impact to the favourable 
conservation status of bats roosting at the site. It is therefore recommended that the 
identified mitigation measures to minimise impacts to bats are secured through an 
appropriately worded planning condition. 
 
NRW were also consulted and are satisfied that the proposed development will not be 
detrimental to the maintenance of the population of the bat species concerned at a 
favourable conservation status subject to the recommendations made in the bat report  
being secured by an appropriate condition. 
 
Careful consideration will need to be given to any external lighting to be erected on the 
proposed development.  If external lighting is proposed then measures will need to be 
identified to minimise impacts to nocturnal wildlife commuting and foraging in the local 
area. It is therefore recommended that a Wildlife Sensitive Lighting Plan is secured 
through an appropriately worded condition. 
 
Careful consideration will need to be given to landscaping and consideration should be 
given to the development of a native landscape planting scheme. It is recommended 
that details of any landscaping proposed are submitted in a detailed Landscape Planting 
Scheme including proposed species mixes, planting and aftercare schedules. It is 
therefore recommended that a landscape planting scheme is secured through an 
appropriately worded condition. 
 
In accordance with Part 1, Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016 Local 
Authorities are required to maintain and enhance biodiversity through all of its functions 
– this includes the planning process. It will therefore need to be demonstrated as to how 
the proposed development will incorporate biodiversity enhancements to ensure net 
biodiversity benefits through the proposed development. These measures could include: 
 
• Provision of bird and bat boxes including the details of the number, type and location 
of these boxes; 
• A wildlife buffer strip and a scheme of appropriate management of these areas, 
hedgerows should be retained within buffer strips and should be unlit or lighting to be 
directed away from the hedgerows to create dark movement corridors for nocturnal 
wildlife through the site;  
• Provision of wildlife friendly landscape planting. 
 
Measures identified in the ecological report are considered to be necessary mitigation 

Page 30



 

 

for the loss of roosting and nesting features therefore it is recommended that a condition 
is included to secure the submission of a biodiversity enhancement plan. 
 
Safeguarding strategic resources and assets 
 
LDP policy SP7 seeks to protect strategic resources and assets from inappropriate 
development including buildings and sites of historic interest and public rights of way. 
 
Public footpath 15 runs through the development site. Countryside Services have been 
consulted and subject to an appropriate informative being attached have no objection. 
 
Subject therefore, to the attachment of an informative, it is considered that the proposed 
development complies with relevant planning policy. 
 
 
Contaminated Land 
 
Policy DM10 of the Powys LDP requires that development proposals on contaminated 
land should not adversely affect public health and safety, nature conservation, historic 
or archaeological interests.  
 
The application site comprises agricultural buildings and land that could contain 
potential sources of contamination, depending on what they were used for in the past, 
such as: pesticides, fuels and oils, slurry tanks and pits, fire sites, animal burial pits or 
other buried waste, fertiliser, sheep dip pits, asbestos, old machinery, waste chemical 
drums and ammunition.  
 
The Contaminated Land Officer has been consulted and recommends the attachment of 
a condition to secure appropriate action in the event that pollution or contamination is 
found. 
 
Subject therefore to the attachment of an appropriate condition, it is considered that the 
proposed development is in accordance with policy DM10. 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
In light of the above it is considered that the proposed development fundamentally 
complies with relevant national and local planning policy and the recommendation is 
one of conditional consent. In accordance with the requirements of the Planning 
Protocol the Council’s Solicitor has reviewed the background papers and has confirmed 
that the application has been processed normally.  
 
Conditions 
 

1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than 

Page 31



 

 

the expiration of five years from the date of this permission. 
2. The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the plans 

approved on the date of this consent (drawing nos.: 19/4430/1, 19/4430/3, 
19/4430/5 and 19/4430/6). 

3. Prior to the occupation of any of the dwellings herby approved the access shall 
be constructed in accordance with the detail shown on the approved Drawing 
19/4430/6  so that there is clear visibility from a point 1.05 metres above ground 
level at the centre of the access and 2.4 metres distant from the edge of the 
adjoining carriageway, to points 0.6 metres above ground level at the edge of the 
adjoining carriageway and 59 metres distant in each direction measured from the 
centre of the access along the edge of the adjoining carriageway.  Nothing shall 
be planted, erected or allowed to grow on the area(s) of land so formed that 
would obstruct the visibility and the visibility shall be maintained free from 
obstruction for as long as the development hereby permitted remains in 
existence. 

4. Upon formation of the visibility splays as detailed above in condition 3 the 
centreline of any new or relocated hedge should be positioned not less than 1.0 
metre to the rear of the visibility splay and retained in this position as long as the 
development remains in existence. 

5. The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the mitigation 
measures and recommendations identified in the Bat Assessment 1593/01 b 
produced by Ecology Planning dated February 2020.The identified measures 
shall be adhered to and implemented in full and maintained thereafter. 

6. No external lighting shall be installed unless a detailed external lighting design 
scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The external lighting scheme shall identify measures to avoid impacts 
on nocturnal wildlife in accordance with the recommendations outlined in the 
BCT and ILP Guidance Note 8 Bats and Artificial Lighting (12th September 
2018).  The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 

7. Prior to the commencement of development a detailed landscaping scheme shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
submitted landscaping scheme shall include a scaled drawing and a written 
specification clearly describing the species, sizes, densities and planting 
numbers proposed as well as aftercare measures. Drawings must include 
accurate details of any existing trees and hedgerows to be retained with their 
location, species, size and condition. The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details. 

8. Prior to commencement of development, a detailed Biodiversity Enhancement 
Plan shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and implemented as 
approved and maintained thereafter unless otherwise agreed in writing with the 
LPA. 

9. In the event that the presence of contamination is encountered when carrying out 
the approved development immediate contact must be made with the local 
planning authority and works must cease in that area. An investigation and risk 
assessment must be undertaken and where remediation is necessary a 

Page 32



 

 

remediation scheme must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing 
of the local planning authority.   
 
Following completion of the remedial works identified in the approved 
remediation scheme, a verification report that demonstrates compliance with the 
agreed remediation objectives and criteria shall be produced, and is subject to 
the written approval of the local planning authority, prior to commencement of 
use of the development.   

10. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General 
Permitted development Order 2013, (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that 
Order) nothing in Article 3 of, or Schedule 2 to that Order, shall operate as to 
permit within the red outline on the site location plan, reference 19/4430/1, any 
development referred to in Part 1 of the Second Schedule to the Order and no 
such development shall be carried out at any time within that area without the 
express grant of permission by the local planning authority.  

 
Reasons 
 
1. Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.  
 
2. To ensure adherence to the plans stamped as approved in the interests of clarity and 
a satisfactory development. 
 
3. In the interest of highway safety in accordance with policies DM13 and T1 of the 
Powys Local Development Plan, Planning Policy Wales and Technical Advice Note 18. 
 
4. In the interest of highway safety in accordance with policies DM13 and T1 of the 
Powys Local Development Plan, Planning Policy Wales and Technical Advice Note 18. 
 
5. To comply with Powys County Council’s LDP DM2 and DM7 in relation to The Natural 
Environment and to meet the requirements of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 10, 
December 2018), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part 1 Section 6 of the 
Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 
 
6. To comply with Powys County Council’s LDP DM2 and DM7 in relation to The Natural 
Environment and to meet the requirements of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 10, 
December 2018), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part 1 Section 6 of the 
Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 
 
7. To comply with Powys County Council’s LDP DM2 and DM7 in relation to The Natural 
Environment and to meet the requirements of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 10, 
December 2018), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part 1 Section 6 of the 
Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 
 
8. To comply with Powys County Council’s LDP DM2 and DM7 in relation to The Natural 
Environment and to meet the requirements of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 10, 

Page 33



 

 

December 2018), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part 1 Section 6 of the 
Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 
 
9. To safeguard the amenities of future occupants with regards to land contamination in 
accordance with Policy DM10 of the Powys County Council's Local Development Plan 
(2018). 
 
10. In order to protect the character and appearance of the development in accordance 
with policy DM13 of the Powys Local Development Plan (2018). 
 
 
Informative notes for Developer/Applicant 
 
Ecology and Biodiversity 
 
Warning: A European protected species (EPS) Licence is required for this 
development.  
This planning permission does not provide consent to undertake works that require an 
EPS licence.  
It is an offence to deliberately capture, kill or disturb EPS or to recklessly damage or 
destroy their breeding sites or resting places. If found guilty of any offences, you could 
be sent to prison for up to 6 months and/or receive an unlimited fine. 
To undertake the works within the law, you can obtain further information on the need 
for a licence from Natural Resources Wales on 0300 065 3000 or at 
https://naturalresources.wales/permits-and-permissions/protected-species-
licensing/european-protected-species-licensing/?lang=en 
 
Bats - Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and The Conservation of 
Habitats and Species Regulations 2017. 
It is an offence for any person to: 

 Intentionally kill, injure or take any bats. 

 Intentionally or recklessly damage, destroy or obstruct access to any place that a 
bat uses for shelter or protection. This is taken to mean all bat roosts whether 
bats are present or not.  

Under the Habitats Regulations it is an offence to: 

 Damage or destroy a breeding site or resting place of any bat. This is an 
absolute offence - in other words, intent or recklessness does not have to be 
proved. 

 
The applicant is therefore reminded that it is an offence under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and The Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations 2017 that works to trees or buildings where that work involves the 
disturbance of a bat is an offence if a licence has not been obtained from Natural 
Resources Wales. If a bat is discovered while work is being undertaken, all work must 
stop and advice sought from Natural Resources Wales and the Council's Ecologist. You 
can also call the National Bat helpline on 0345 1300 228 or email 

Page 34

https://naturalresources.wales/permits-and-permissions/protected-species-licensing/european-protected-species-licensing/?lang=en
https://naturalresources.wales/permits-and-permissions/protected-species-licensing/european-protected-species-licensing/?lang=en


 

 

enquiries@bats.org.uk. 
 
Birds - Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) 
All nesting birds, their nests, eggs and young are protected by law and it is an offence 
to: 

 intentionally kill, injure or take any wild bird  

 intentionally take, damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird whilst it is in use or 
being built  

 intentionally take or destroy the egg of any wild bird 

 intentionally (or recklessly in England and Wales) disturb any wild bird listed on 
Schedule1 while it is nest building, or at a nest containing eggs or young, or 
disturb the dependent young of such a bird.  

 
The maximum penalty that can be imposed - in respect of a single bird, nest or egg - is 
a fine of up to 5,000 pounds, six months imprisonment or both.  
The applicant is therefore reminded that it is an offence under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) to remove or work on any hedge, tree or building 
where that work involves the taking, damaging or destruction of any nest of any wild bird 
while the nest is in use or being built (usually between late February and late August or 
late September in the case of swifts, swallows or house martins).  If a nest is discovered 
while work is being undertaken, all work must stop and advice sought from Natural 
Resources Wales and the Council's Ecologist.  
 
Protected Species 
Work should halt immediately and Natural Resources Wales (NRW) contacted for 
advice in the event that protected species are discovered during the course of the 
development.  To proceed without seeking the advice of NRW may result in an offence 
under the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 and/or the Wildlife & 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) being committed. NRW can be contacted at: Tel: 
0300 065 3000. 
 
Environmental Protection 
 
Any new system must comply with document H2 of the Building Regulations relating to 
design and installation of the foul drainage system. 
 
In addition, Welsh Government has advised that, all septic tanks and small sewage 
treatment plant discharges in Wales will need to be registered with Natural Resources 
Wales. More information, including a step by step guide to registering can be found at 
the following link  http://www.naturalresources.wales/media/2879/septic-tank-
registration-guidance.pdf?lang=en . 
 
Public Rights of Way 
 
The applicant is advised that public footpath 15 runs through the development and the 
Service therefore provides the following advice regarding the footpath should the 

Page 35

mailto:enquiries@bats.org.uk
http://www.naturalresources.wales/media/2879/septic-tank-registration-guidance.pdf?lang=en
http://www.naturalresources.wales/media/2879/septic-tank-registration-guidance.pdf?lang=en


 

 

development receive planning permission. 
 

 Development over, or illegal interference with, a public right of way, is a criminal 
offence and enforcement action will be taken against a developer who ignores 
the presence of affected public rights of way. This includes temporary 
obstructions such as rubble mounds, building materials, parked vehicles etc.   

 

 Landscaping & Surfacing - Advice will need to be sought before interfering or 
surfacing a public right of way. 

  

 New fencing or boundaries – The developer will need to seek a licence for a 
new structure if intending to create a boundary across a public footpath or 
bridleway. We cannot authorise a structure across a Restricted Byway or Byway 
Open to All Traffic. 

 

 Temporary closures – The developer can seek a temporary closure of a public 
right of way from the council if they feel the public may be at risk during 
development.   

 

 Legal Diversion – If development directly affects a public right of way, the 
developer will need to seek advice and apply for a legal diversion from the 
Council. No development can take place on a public right of way until a legal 
order is confirmed and the process may take at least 6 months.  For more 
information please discuss with Countryside Services at the earliest available 
opportunity.  

 
Contaminated Land 
 
The Council’s guidance leaflet on the development of sites with potential land 
contamination is attached. Further advice on compliance with this condition may be 
obtained by contacting the Environmental Health Service on 0870 1923757. 
 
Foul Drainage 
 
With respect to the discharge of effluent to ground or surface water, the Applicant will 
need to apply for an environmental permit or register an exemption with us. Septic tanks 
and small sewage treatment works may be registered as exempt from the requirement 
to obtain an environmental permit if certain criteria are met.  
 
Please note, should a permit be required, further information may be required as part of 
that application and the Applicant is therefore advised to hold pre-application 
discussions with our Permitting Team on 0300 065 3000, at the earliest opportunity, to 
try to ensure that there is no conflict between any planning permission granted and the 
permit requirements. It is important to note that a grant of planning permission does not 
guarantee that a permit will be granted, should a proposal be deemed to be 
unacceptable (either because of environmental risk or because upon further 

Page 36



 

 

investigation, a connection to mains sewer was feasible). The Applicant should ensure 
that they have all the required permissions, consents, permits and any other approvals 
in place prior to commencement of works on the site.  
 
More information, including a step by step guide to registering and the relevant 
application forms are available on our website. Where private sewage 
treatment/disposal facilities are utilised, they must be installed and maintained in 
accordance with British Standards 6297 and Approved Document H of the Building 
Regulations. We also refer the Applicant to the Guidance for Pollution Prevention 4 on 
the NetRegs website, which provides further information. 
 
PCC / Land Drainage – Watercourse Consent 
 
Installation of a new soakaway/drainage system with an outfall to an ordinary 
watercourse may require a Flood Defence Consent from Powys CC, as the Lead Local 
Flood Authority in this area. Please see https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/4661/Ordinary-
Watercourses- www.naturalresourceswales.gov.uk www.cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk 
Page 4 of 4 Applying-for-consent-for-works for more information or contact 
land.drainage@Powys.gov.uk for more details. 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



SITE LOCATION PLAN

Pantyoityn Farm, Cefn Gorwydd, Llangammarch Wells.  LD4 4DP

1:2500 on A4

3/1/2020

19/4430/1

--

Site Address: -

Scale: -

Date: -

Drawing Number: -

Amended: - Revision: -

Crown copyright and database rights 2018. Streetwise Licence No. 100047474. 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Application No. Proposal Location

20/0675/REM Section 73 application to 
vary condition no. 2 
attached to planning 
application P/2017/1336 
(change to approved 
plans for chalet no. 3 
only) in connection with 
approval of 3 no. chalets

Plas Robin
Llandyssil
Powys
SY15 6LQ

20/1047/RES Application for reserved 
matters following the 
approval of P/2017/0670 
for the erection of a 
dwelling (Plot B)

Land Adj Nant Y Waen 
Abermule
Montgomery
Powys
SY15 6NR

20/1096/FUL Erection of community 
room as single storey 
extension to Abermule 
Community Centre

Community Centre 
Abermule
SY15 6ND

19/1877/FUL Installation of 5x biomass 
boilers, erection of 4x 
buildings to house them 
(1 to be installed within an 
existing building) and all 
associated works 
(retrospective).

Minffordd
Llangadfan
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 0PL

Banwy 
Community

Approve 27/11/2019 Full Application 23/09/2020

Abermule And 
Llandyssil 
Community

Approve 15/05/2020 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

06/10/2020

Approve 29/07/2020 Reserved Matters 12/10/2020

Approve 29/07/2020 Full Application 13/10/2020

Delegated List 

107 Applications

Excel Version
Go Back

Parish Name Decision Date Application Application Type Date Decision 
Issued

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
15/10/2020 09:50:59 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 1 of 24

P
age 41

5



Delegated List 

107 Applications

20/0964/RES Reserved matters 
application in relation to 
outline permission 
P/2017/0481 for the 
erection of a dwelling 
(appearance, 
landscaping, layout and 
scale)

Hen Neuadd 
Foel
Welshpool
SY21 0NS

20/1027/FUL Change of use of land 
from agricultural to 
residential curtilage

Land East Of Bear House 
Crew Green
Shrewsbury
Powys

20/1030/FUL Alterations to existing 
vehicular access and 
formation of estate road

Development At Land East 
Of Bear House
Crew Green
Shrewsbury
Powys

20/0177/FUL Erection of an agricultural 
building for use as 
livestock and muck store 
and all associated works

Pantycaragle Farm 
Beguildy
Knighton
LD7 1YD

Beguildy 
Community

Refused 31/01/2020 Full Application 01/10/2020

Bausley With 
Criggion 
Community

Approve 07/07/2020 Full Application 06/10/2020

Approve 15/07/2020 Full Application 01/10/2020

Consent 23/06/2020 Reserved Matters 28/09/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
15/10/2020 09:50:59 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 2 of 24

P
age 42



Delegated List 

107 Applications

20/0017/FUL Partial demolition of 
existing agricultural 
building to form car 
parking area, and 
conversion of existing 
barn into holiday let. To 
include formations of 
vehicular passing places 
and all other associated 
works

Llwyn Y Crwth 
Berriew
Welshpool
SY21 8AQ

20/1380/FUL Erection of an extension 
to a general purpose 
agricultural building

Glanbechan 
Bettws Cedewain
Newtown
SY16 3BN

20/0561/FUL Change of use of 
residential garage to 
hairdressing salon (A1), to 
include external 
alterations

Cartref
1 Irfon Road
Builth Wells
Powys
LD2 3DE

20/0953/REM Section 73 application to 
vary and remove 
conditions 5 and 11 from 
planning permission 
M6213 in relation to 
opening times and 
dimension restrictions

Warren Parc
Penegoes
Machynlleth
Powys
8NN

Cadfarch 
Community

Approve 22/06/2020 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

23/09/2020

Builth Wells 
Community

Consent 11/05/2020 Full Application 13/10/2020

Bettws 
Community

Approve 02/09/2020 Full Application 09/10/2020

Berriew 
Community

Approve 02/01/2020 Full Application 29/09/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
15/10/2020 09:50:59 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 3 of 24

P
age 43



Delegated List 

107 Applications

P/2017/0754 Outline: Proposed 
housing development for 
43 residential units, 
sheltered housing 
proposal and construction 
of a bus layby

Land At Penyborfa
Carno Road
Caersws
Powys
SY17 5JA

20/1034/RES Reserved matters 
application in relation to 
planning approval 
P/2017/0969 for the 
erection of 2x dwellings, 
formation of vehicular 
access, access road and 
all associated works.

Land Opp Cefn Y Wern
Pontdolgoch
Caersws
SY17 5NJ

20/1075/HH Erection of extension to 
provide disability 
accessible bedroom, wet 
room and living room.

Westbourne 
Greenlands Lane
Caersws
SY17 5EZ

20/0446/RES Reserved matters 
application for the 
approval of appearance, 
landscaping, layout and 
scale in connection with 
proposed development of 
five (5) dwellings 
(approved under outline 
planning permission 
P/2016/0892)

Erection Of Five Dwellings 
At Land Opposite Tynllan 
Farm
Castell Caereinion
Welshpool
Powys

Castle 
Caereinion 
Community

Approve 13/03/2020 Reserved Matters 05/10/2020

Caersws 
Community

Approve 01/12/2017 Outline planning 23/09/2020

Approve 03/07/2020 Reserved Matters 23/09/2020

Approve 28/07/2020 Householder 25/09/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
15/10/2020 09:50:59 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 4 of 24

P
age 44



Delegated List 

107 Applications

20/0947/FUL Erection of 2 semi 
detached affordable 
dwellings and associated 
works to replace single 
detached affordable 
dwelling previously 
approved

Land At Plot 1 Tynllan Farm 
Castle Caereinion
Welshpool
SY21 9AL

19/1976/FUL Erection of an agricultural 
building to be used for 
storage and livestock

Oakfields 
Llangyniew
Welshpool
SY21 9ET

19/2020/FUL Erection of an agricultural 
building to be used for 
storage and livestock

Oakfields 
Llangyniew
Welshpool
SY21 9ET

20/1329/HH Alterations and 
extensions to existing 
farmhouse including 
demolition of side 
extension and alterations 
to adjoining domestic 
outbuilding to form 
additional living 
accommodation

The Barns
Hyssington
Montgomery
Powys
SY15 6EG

20/0243/FUL Erection of an extension 
and creation of a 
vehicular access, to 
include some demolition

Mill Cottage
Clyro
Hereford
Powys
HR3 5SE

Clyro 
Community

Approve 30/03/2020 Full Application 23/09/2020

23/09/2020

Churchstoke 
Community

Consent 24/08/2020 Householder 13/10/2020

Consent 23/06/2020 Full Application 28/09/2020

Refused 03/12/2019 Full Application 23/09/2020

Refused 11/12/2019 Full Application

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
15/10/2020 09:50:59 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 5 of 24

P
age 45



Delegated List 

107 Applications

20/1209/FUL Erection of an agricultural 
livestock building

Land At Maes Y Cae
Disserth
Builth Wells
Powys
LD2 3TL

20/1109/HH Erection of domestic 
garage and store together 
with extension to 
domestic curtilage

Pant Y Rhiw 
Llandewi'r-Cwm
Builth Wells
LD2 3RZ

19/1475/FUL Erection of a free-range 
egg production unit 
including silos, creation of 
vehicular access, and 
associated works (part 
retrospective)

Tyn Yr Wtra
Llanwyddelan
New Mills
Newtown
Powys
SY16 3BT

20/0284/FUL Erection of a temporary 
marquee

Land Adjacent To St Mary 
The Virgin Church 
Trelystan 
Welshpool
SY21 8LA

20/0970/HH Demolition of chimney 
stack, replacement of 
slate roof, removal of 
dormer window and 
installation of velux 
window, and other 
associated works

Ty Capel
Abercegir
Machynlleth
Powys
SY20 8NR

Glantwymyn 
Community

Approve 24/06/2020 Householder 13/10/2020

Forden With 
Leighton & 
Trelystan Com

Refused 17/03/2020 Full Application 08/10/2020

Dwyriw 
Community

Approve 12/09/2019 Full Application 25/09/2020

Duhonw 
Community

Approve 21/07/2020 Householder 13/10/2020

Disserth And 
Trecoed 
Community

Approve 05/08/2020 Full Application 06/10/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
15/10/2020 09:50:59 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 6 of 24

P
age 46



Delegated List 

107 Applications

20/0971/CAC Demolition of chimney 
stack, replacement of 
slate roof, removal of 
dormer window and 
installation of velux 
window, and other 
associated works

Ty Capel
Abercegir
Machynlleth
Powys
SY20 8NR

20/0894/LBC Listed building consent for 
demolition of existing 
single storey flat roof 
extension and erection of 
a new single storey flat 
roof extension

The Square 
Guilsfield
Welshpool
SY21 9NJ

20/0893/HH Demolition of existing 
single storey flat roof 
extension  and erection of 
a new single storey flat 
roof extension

The Square 
Guilsfield
Welshpool
SY21 9NJ

20/1258/TRE Application for works to 
trees within a 
conservation area

Yew Trees
Oak Lane
Guilsfield
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 9NH

08/10/2020

Guilsfield 
Community Approve 10/06/2020 Listed Building 

Consent
06/10/2020

Approve 24/06/2020 Householder 06/10/2020

Approve 12/08/2020 Works to trees in 
Conservation Area

Approve 24/06/2020 Conservation Area 
Consent

13/10/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
15/10/2020 09:50:59 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 7 of 24

P
age 47



Delegated List 

107 Applications

20/0526/FUL Proposed change of use 
of land from agricultural to 
tourism for the siting of six 
log cabins, formation of 
associated access track 
and all associated works 
(resubmission)

Lower Penygelli
Kerry
Newtown
Powys
SY16 4LX

19/0743/FUL Erection of 2 no. poultry 
buildings and associated 
infrastructure

Llanshay Farm
Llanshay Lane
Knighton
Powys
LD7 1LW

20/1087/FUL Change of use from 
residential to business 
offices

Orchard Corner Dental 
Surgery 
Ffrydd Road
Knighton
LD7 1DB

20/1402/TRE Application for works to 
trees in a conservation 
area

Pen Y Cwm
George Road
Knighton
Powys
LD7 1RS

19/0229/FUL Erection of a poultry 
rearing unit including silos 
and all associated works

Dolderwen 
C0022 From Junction With 
A483t By School Garth To 
Crossroads With B4358 Nr 
Troed
Llanafanfawr
Builth Wells
LD2 3LN

Llanafan-Fawr 
Community

Approve 10/04/2019 Full Application 05/10/2020

Knighton 
Community

Approve 03/06/2019 Full Application 25/09/2020

Approve 27/07/2020 Full Application 24/09/2020

Approve 26/08/2020 Works to trees in 
Conservation Area

29/09/2020

Kerry 
Community

Consent 27/03/2020 Full Application 08/10/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
15/10/2020 09:50:59 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 8 of 24

P
age 48



Delegated List 

107 Applications

20/1076/HH Proposed Detached 
Carport, Garage and 
Store

The Pines 
Llandegley
Llandrindod Wells
LD1 5UD

20/0997/HH Demolition of single 
storey utility room and 
construction of two storey 
side extension.

Wharf House 
Llanbadarn Fynydd
Llandrindod Wells
LD1 6YA

20/1360/RES Reserved matters (some) 
application for the 
erection of a dwelling and 
vehicular access following 
outline approval 
P/2018/0417

Land Adjacent To East Of 
Eryl Ithon
Llanbister
Llandrindod
Powys
LD1 6TN

20/0912/FUL Erection of an extension 
to existing agricultural 
building and erection of a 
new agricultural livestock 
building

Land Near Coed Pryfydau 
Llanbrynmair
SY19 7DL

20/1150/REM Section 73 application to 
vary condition 1 on 
planning approval 
P/2017/0668  to allow the 
mast to remain in place 
for a further 3 years

Land At Mynydd Nant 
Carfan
North Of Llanbrynmair
Powys
SY19 7EA

20/1129/FUL Change of use of 
redundant building to 
office/store as an 
extension to existing 
commercial garage

Crossing Garage 
Tremont Road
Llandrindod Wells
LD1 5BH

Llandrindod 
Wells 
Community

Approve 04/08/2020 Full Application 28/09/2020

Llanbrynmair 
Community

Approve 22/06/2020 Full Application 23/09/2020

Approve 27/07/2020 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

02/10/2020

Llanbister 
Community

Approve 27/08/2020 Reserved Matters 09/10/2020

Llanbadarn 
Fynydd 
Community

Refused 29/06/2020 Householder 06/10/2020

Llanbadarn Fawr 
Community

Approve 27/07/2020 Householder 30/09/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
15/10/2020 09:50:59 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 9 of 24

P
age 49



Delegated List 

107 Applications

20/1256/FUL Siting of 4 shipping 
containers to provide an 
office, canteen and 
welfare unit

Unit 28
Ddole Industrial Estate 
Road
Llandrindod Wells 
Powys
LD1 6DF

20/1259/FUL Proposed external 
alterations

Unit 4 
Ddole Industrial Estate 
Road
Llandrindod Wells
Powys
LD1 6DF

20/1181/FUL Erection of a three 
bedroom detached 
bungalow

2 The Grove 
Ithon Road
Llandrindod Wells
LD1 6AS

20/0436/FUL Change of use of land to 
form additional domestic 
curtilage, erection of 
double garage with store 
on the ground floor, 
domestic/home office and 
gym above, relocation of 
existing gateway to 
improve current access, 
replacement of existing 
septic tank with sewage 
treatment plant

Prestbury House
Arddleen
Llanymynech
Powys
SY21 9LF

13/10/2020

Llandrinio And 
Arddleen 
Community

Approve 12/03/2020 Full Application 29/09/2020

Approve 05/08/2020 Full Application 29/09/2020

Approve 13/08/2020 Full Application 24/09/2020

Refused 29/07/2020 Full Application

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
15/10/2020 09:50:59 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 10 of 24

P
age 50



Delegated List 

107 Applications

20/0495/FUL Change of use from 
agricultural land to touring 
caravan storage

The Vine 
Arddleen
Llanymynech
SY22 6RU

20/1046/HH Erection of an extension / 
annexe

Yr Ystablau 
Hendre Lane
Llandrinio
Llanymynech
SY22 6SF

20/1190/FUL Conversion of a garage to 
holiday let 
accommodation

Oakleigh
City Lane
Four Crosses
Llanymynech
Powys
SY22 6RJ

20/0795/FUL Installation of a steel 
container comprising a 
ground source heat pump 
together with underground 
pipework and 2 No. 
boreholes

Wernhalog Farm
Llanfaredd
Builth Wells
Powys
LD2 3TE

20/1154/VAR Application to discharge 
Section 106 legal 
agreement from planning 
approval M/2004/1238 
(occupancy restriction)

Cae Du
Eithinog Lane
Cyfronydd
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 9ED

Llanfair 
Caereinion 
Community

Approve 14/07/2020 Discharge/Modificatio
n of S106

23/09/2020

Llanelwedd 
Community

Approve 03/06/2020 Full Application 30/09/2020

Llandysilio 
Community

Consent 29/07/2020 Full Application 28/09/2020

Approve 25/03/2020 Full Application 01/10/2020

Approve 07/07/2020 Householder 05/10/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
15/10/2020 09:50:59 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 11 of 24

P
age 51



Delegated List 

107 Applications

20/1162/TRE Tree works application to 
fell an ash tree within 
Conservation Area

 4 Tan Y Ddol
Hassel Square
Llanfair Caereinion
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 0RN

20/0972/HH Erection of a carport and 
utility extension

Brinley Cottage
New Road
Llanfair Caereinion
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 0SB

20/1356/HH Erection of a single storey 
rear extension

The Stables
New Road
Llanfair Caereinion
Y Trallwng
Powys
SY21 0SB

20/0918/HH Demolition of existing 
porch and erection of a 
replacement porch

Brynhyfred
Llanfihangel
Llanfyllin
Powys
SY22 5JD

05/10/2020

Llanfihangel 
Community

Refused 28/07/2020 Householder 25/09/2020

Approve 15/07/2020 Works to trees in 
Conservation Area

24/09/2020

Approve 17/08/2020 Householder 28/09/2020

Approve 28/08/2020 Householder

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
15/10/2020 09:50:59 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 12 of 24

P
age 52



Delegated List 

107 Applications

20/1229/OUT Outline planning 
application for  'One pair 
of semi-detached 
dwellings on Land at 
Maes Watkin to include 
associated hardstanding, 
curtilage, access and 
connection to required 
services.'

Erection Of Dwelling At 
Land At Maes Watkin
Maes Watkin
Llangedwyn
Oswestry
Powys

20/0401/FUL Erection of a dwelling in 
connection with rural 
enterprise and all 
associated works

Land At Mill Race 
Llangunllo
Knighton
LD7 1SP

20/0572/FUL Change of use of ground 
floor garden store and 
first floor attic above 
garage into 2 holiday flats 
and construction of porch 
and balcony

Bont Dulas
Cwmbelan
Llanidloes
Powys
SY18 6RF

20/0925/HH Erection of a  two storey 
extension to existing 
dwelling

Fronwen
Derlwyn
Llangynog
Oswestry
SY10 0HF

20/1057/FUL Erection of a workshop for 
the storage of classic 
tractors

Maes Nant
Llanthomas Lane
Llanigon
Hereford
Powys
HR3 5PU

Llanigon 
Community

Refused 16/07/2020 Full Application 06/10/2020

Llangynog 
Community

Approve 18/06/2020 Householder 09/10/2020

Llangurig 
Community

Approve 03/04/2020 Full Application 09/10/2020

Llangunllo 
Community

Refused 10/03/2020 Full Application 23/09/2020

Llangedwyn 
Community

Consent 19/08/2020 Outline planning 08/10/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
15/10/2020 09:50:59 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 13 of 24

P
age 53



Delegated List 

107 Applications

20/1100/FUL Installation of a 195kw 
biomass boiler and all 
associated works 
(retrospective)

Maes 
Maengwynedd
Llanrhaeadr-Ym-Mochnant
SY10 0DE

20/1149/FUL Siting of two hobbit 
houses, alterations to 
access, creation of a 
track, installation of 
treatment plant and all 
associated works

Trewern 
Llanrhaeadr-Ym-Mochnant
Oswestry
SY10 0DP

20/0603/HH Removal of single storey 
rear extension and side 
conservatory. Erection of 
2 storey rear extension 
and single storey side 
extension. Repositioning 
of front porch.

Hawthorn Cottage
Pen-rhos
Llanymynech
Powys
SY22 6QQ

20/1064/RES Reserved matters 
application in respect of 
outline consent 
P/2016/0324 for erection 
of 5 dwellings and 
associated works

The Old Station Yard
Pen-y-bont
Oswestry
Powys

Llansantffraid 
Community

Approve 22/04/2020 Householder 24/09/2020

Consent 03/07/2020 Reserved Matters 28/09/2020

Llanrhaeadr-Ym-
Mochant 
Community

Consent 07/08/2020 Full Application 23/09/2020

Consent 26/08/2020 Full Application 09/10/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
15/10/2020 09:50:59 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 14 of 24

P
age 54



Delegated List 

107 Applications

19/0412/REM Section 73 application to 
vary conditions 2 and 3 of 
planning appeal 
APP/T6850/A/16/3144657 
(P/2014/1118) to extend 
the time limit for the 
submission of a reserved 
matters application and 
commencement of 
development

Land At Maes Y Dre
Beulah Road
Llanwrtyd Wells
Powys

20/1157/HH Installation of a summer 
house at the end of the 
garden.

1 Glanirfon Court 
Station Road
Llanwrtyd Wells
LD5 4AF

20/1196/CLE Application for certificate 
of lawfulness for an 
existing use namely 
retention of caravan 
carport

1 The Paddock
Llanyre
Llandrindod Wells
Powys
LD1 6NG

20/1469/TPO Application for works to 
trees subject to a Tree 
Preservation Order 
namely fell 2 no. trees

Tall Trees
Llanyre
Llandrindod Wells
Powys
LD1 6DY

20/1236/HH Erection of front and rear 
extensions and a 
detached garage

Caercwrlif
Llanyre
Llandrindod Wells
Powys
LD1 6EA

Llanyre 
Community

Approve 12/08/2020 Certificate of 
Lawfulness - Existing

30/09/2020

Consent 16/09/2020 Works to Trees 
subject to a TPO

30/09/2020

Refused 29/07/2020 Householder 02/10/2020

Llanwrtyd Wells 
Community

Approve 18/03/2019 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

02/10/2020

Approve 21/08/2020 Householder 29/09/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
15/10/2020 09:50:59 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 15 of 24

P
age 55



Delegated List 

107 Applications

20/0628/FUL Proposed new roof and 
walls surrounding a muck 
store

Rhiwbergoch
Llywel
Brecon
Powys
LD3 8RG

20/0857/REM Variation on conditions 2 
and 3 from planning 
permission 18/0056/FUL 
in relation to plans and 
access

Bro Ddyfi Community 
Hospital 
Maengwyn Street
Machynlleth
SY20 8AD

20/0073/FUL Change of use of 
agricultural land to 
provide extension to 
existing caravan park for 
additional 28 caravans 
together with associated 
foul water drainage 
system and internal 
access road and 
alterations to existing 
access.

Valley View Holiday Park
Pentre'r-beirdd
Guilsfield
Powys
SY21 9DL

20/0546/FUL Construction of a 
treehouse holiday 
accommodation unit, 
timber boardwalk access, 
formation of vehicular 
access road, installation 
of septic tank and all 
associated works

Land At Trawscoed Farm 
Mochdre
Newtown
SY16 4JU

Mochdre 
Community

Approve 03/04/2020 Full Application 13/10/2020

Meifod 
Community

Approve 27/01/2020 Full Application 28/09/2020

Machynlleth 
Community

Approve 05/06/2020 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

25/09/2020

Llywel 
Community

Consent 27/04/2020 Full Application 23/09/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
15/10/2020 09:50:59 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 16 of 24

P
age 56



Delegated List 

107 Applications

20/1263/TPO Application to reduce the 
size of a tree with a TPO

Fairdene
3 Caerhowel Hall
Caerhowel
Montgomery
Powys
SY15 6HE

19/1772/FUL Construction of six lodges 
for holiday let use, 
vehicular parking and 
pathways, installation of a 
septic tank, and all 
associated works

Land Near Cae Newydd
Rhayader
Powys
LD6 5BL

20/1066/HH Erection of a conservatory 
to the front of the 
property.

Mimulus
Mutton Dingle
New Radnor
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2TL

20/1282/TRE Application for works to a 
tree in a conservation 
area

Little House
Water Street
New Radnor
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2SY

New Radnor 
Community

Approve 10/07/2020 Householder 28/09/2020

Approve 02/09/2020 Works to trees in 
Conservation Area

06/10/2020

Nantmel 
Community

Approve 08/11/2019 Full Application 09/10/2020

Montgomery 
Community

Approve 13/08/2020 Works to Trees 
subject to a TPO

08/10/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
15/10/2020 09:50:59 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 17 of 24

P
age 57



Delegated List 

107 Applications

19/1764/FUL Change of use of 
agricultural field to static 
caravan site (25 static 
caravans), creation of a 
new access, installation of 
a package treatment plant 
and all associated works

Land West Of Old Station 
Caravan Site
New Radnor
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2AZ

20/0015/FUL Erection of an agricultural 
building and hard 
standing (part 
retrospective)

Land At Honeysuckle 
Cottage 
Upper Gwestydd Lane
Cefn Mawr
Newtown
SY16 3LA

20/0502/REM Section 73 application to 
vary condition 2 of 
planning consent 
P/2016/0163 to extend 
the period of time for the 
submission of the 
reserved matters

Enclosure 9190
Upper Dolfor Road
Newtown
Powys
SY16 3AD

20/0597/FUL Demolition of a workshop 
building and erection of 1 
no. 2 storey, 2 bedroom 
house

The Old Smithy 
Commercial Street
Newtown
SY16 2DE

20/0905/FUL Erection of an affordable 
two-bed wheelchair 
adapted bungalow

Barford 
Llanidloes Road
Llanllwchaiarn
Newtown
SY16 1HL

02/10/2020

Newtown And 
Llanllwchaiarn 
Community

Approve 10/01/2020 Full Application 24/09/2020

Approve 18/03/2020 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

06/10/2020

Approve 15/06/2020 Full Application 09/10/2020

Approve 23/06/2020 Full Application

Consent 04/11/2019 Full Application 28/09/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
15/10/2020 09:50:59 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 18 of 24

P
age 58



Delegated List 

107 Applications

20/1293/ADV Erection of 1 illuminated 
totem sign, 4 fascia signs, 
2 low level totems and 1 
vinyl sign

Land South Of Pool Road 
(Former Ford Garage Site)
Newtown
Powys
SY16 3AH

20/0939/CLE Application for certificate 
of lawfulness for an 
existing use namely use 
of property as a single 
residential dwelling

The Skreen 
Llandeilo Graban
Builth Wells
LD2 3SJ

20/0898/HH Alterations to dwelling to 
include reroofing works, 
new door and windows to 
front elevation and 
erection of a rear 
extension together with 
demolition of existing rear 
extension (Resubmission)

4 St David's Street
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2BP

20/0982/HH Erection of triple bay 
garage

Plot 1 Northwest Of 
Sunnydale 
Knighton Road
Presteigne
LD8 2ET

20/1158/HH Erection of timber framed 
carport with workshop 
attached

25 Hereford Street
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2AT

Presteigne 
Community

Approve 05/06/2020 Householder 25/09/2020

Approve 10/07/2020 Householder 02/10/2020

Approve 15/07/2020 Householder 29/09/2020

Painscastle 
Community

Approve 19/06/2020 Certificate of 
Lawfulness - Existing

28/09/2020

Approve 19/08/2020 Advertisement 
Consent

06/10/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
15/10/2020 09:50:59 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 19 of 24

P
age 59



Delegated List 

107 Applications

20/1225/HH Proposed Two Storey 
Side Extension

21 Caenbrook Meadow
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2NE

20/1290/TRE Application for works to 5 
trees within a 
conservation area

39 High Street
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2BE

20/1375/TRE Application for works to 
trees in a conservation 
area

Bridge Inn
Broad Street
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2AB

20/1437/TRE Application for works to 
trees in a conservation 
area

Elan Estate Office
Agents House
Elan Valley
Rhaeadr Gwy
Powys
LD6 5HP

P/2018/0580 Full: Erection of a poultry 
rearing unit including silos 
and all associated works

Land At Red House
Tregynon
Newtown
Powys
SY16 3ER

Tregynon 
Community

Approve 25/05/2018 Full application 25/09/2020

Approve 01/09/2020 Works to trees in 
Conservation Area

01/10/2020

Rhayader 
Community

Consent 02/09/2020 Works to trees in 
Conservation Area

08/10/2020

30/09/2020

Approve 17/08/2020 Works to trees in 
Conservation Area

13/10/2020

Approve 07/08/2020 Householder

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
15/10/2020 09:50:59 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 20 of 24

P
age 60



Delegated List 

107 Applications

20/0697/FUL Change of use of ground 
floor workshop and first 
floor offices to a sports 
therapy facility with a gym 
and refreshments area on 
the ground floor.

The Old Sawmills
Tregynon
Newtown
Powys
SY16 3PL

20/0575/REM Section 73 application to 
vary condition 1 of 
permission P/2015/0439 
in relation to an extension 
of time

Buttington Quarry 
Buttington
Welshpool
SY21 8SZ

20/0302/FUL Erection of new research 
and office facility with 
associated car parking 
and secure compound

Land At Offas Dyke 
Business Park 
Fisher Road
Buttington
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 8JF

20/1313/HH Erection of an extension, 
to include the removal of 
a conservatory

Oak Grange 
Middletown
Welshpool
Powys 
SY21 8DD

Trewern 
Community

Approve 07/04/2020 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

24/09/2020

Consent 28/02/2020 Full Application 08/10/2020

Consent 20/08/2020 Householder 13/10/2020

Approve 11/05/2020 Full Application 02/10/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
15/10/2020 09:50:59 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 21 of 24

P
age 61



Delegated List 

107 Applications

20/0327/RES Reserved matters 
application for details of 
access, appearance, 
landscaping, layout & 
scale in connection with 
proposed 2 no. dwelling 
houses approved under 
permission P/2017/0747

Development At Land 
Adjoining Priors Cottage
Middletown
Welshpool
Powys

20/0399/FUL Erection of an extension 
to existing industrial unit

STA Ltd
Henfaes Lane
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 7BE

20/1077/HH Single storey front 
extension comprising of a 
metal framed pergola & 
metal framed canopy with 
semi transparent solar 
glazed roof panels

Rose Cottage 
Church Road
Welshpool
SY21 7LN

20/1192/TRE Application for works to 
trees in a conservation 
area

14 St Mary's Place
Union Street
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 7PF

28/09/2020

Welshpool 
Community

Approve 10/03/2020 Full Application 06/10/2020

Approve 13/07/2020 Householder 29/09/2020

Approve 22/07/2020 Works to trees in 
Conservation Area

13/10/2020

Refused 27/02/2020 Reserved Matters

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
15/10/2020 09:50:59 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 22 of 24

P
age 62



Delegated List 

107 Applications

20/1414/TRE lPleasApplication for 
works to a tree in a 
conservation area

Oak Cottage
23 High Street
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 7JP

20/1173/LBC Listed building consent for 
internal alterations namely 
installation of handrails to 
flight of stairs and grab 
rails

Linley Cottage
Union Street
Welshpool 
Powys
SY21 7PG

20/1102/FUL Change of use from use 
class A1 to use class  A3, 
erection of an extension 
and replacement doors 
and windows

The Old Bakehouse 
14 Church Street
Welshpool
SY21 7DP

20/1349/FUL Change of use of first 
floor (former living 
accommodation) for use 
as office/storage/welfare 
facilities incidental to 
existing ground floor use 
as fish & chip shop 
(retrospective)

Andrew's Fish Bar 
32 High Street
Welshpool
SY21 7JP

20/0321/LBC Replacement of 4 iron 
framed single glazed 
windows with double 
glazed timber casements

5 Sarn-Y-Bryn-Caled 
Belan
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 8SA

Refused 11/03/2020 Listed Building 
Consent

30/09/2020

Consent 29/07/2020 Full Application 23/09/2020

Consent 02/09/2020 Full Application 08/10/2020

Works to trees in 
Conservation Area

29/09/2020

Consent 28/07/2020 Listed Building 
Consent

08/10/2020

Approve 26/08/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
15/10/2020 09:50:59 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 23 of 24

P
age 63



Delegated List 

107 Applications

20/1239/HH Removal of the existing 
porch and construct a 
new entrance porch

Ty'r Pentre Farm, Ty'r 
Pentre Farmhouse 
Tynewydd
Battle
Brecon
LD3 9RN

20/1233/REM Section 73 application to 
vary condition no. 2 
attached to outline 
approval for dwelling 
under ref: P/2018/0294 to 
allow an extension of time 
for submission of 
reserved matters by a 
further 3 years

Plot At Former Playground
Glannant Terrace
Ystradgynlais
Powys
SA9 1BG

20/1319/HH Demolition of existing rear 
extension and 
construction of single 
storey rear extension

68 Wind Road
Ystradgynlais
SA9 1AH

Applicati 107

Ystradgynlais 
Community

Approve 10/08/2020 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

09/10/2020

Approve 20/08/2020 Householder 29/09/2020

Yscir 
Community

Approve 30/07/2020 Householder 06/10/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
15/10/2020 09:50:59 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 24 of 24

P
age 64



Application No. Proposal Location

20/0137/FUL Erection of an extension 
to an existing poultry unit 
together with all other 
associated works

Cwm
Bwlch-Y-Ffridd
Newtown
SY16 3JD

20/1120/RES Application for reserved 
matters following approval 
of P/2017/0670 (Plot A)

Plot A 
Land Adjacent To Nant Y 
Waen
Llanmerewig
Abermule
Powys
SY15 6NR

20/1513/HH Erection of an extension 10 Maes Y Ddawns
Llangadfan
Welshpool
SY21 0GA

Banwy 
Community

Approve 30/09/2020 Householder 03/11/2020

Abermule And 
Llandyssil 
Community

Approve 03/08/2020 Reserved Matters 19/10/2020

Aberhafesp 
Community

Approve 09/03/2020 Full Application 29/10/2020

Delegated List 

63 Applications

Excel Version
Go Back

Parish Name Decision Date Application Application Type Date Decision 
Issued

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
04/11/2020 14:44:18 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 1 of 17

P
age 65



Delegated List 

63 Applications

20/1379/HH Proposed Detached 
Garage

Dolyfelin Farm Barn 
Conversion
Heyope
Knighton
Powys
LD7 1RA

19/1973/FUL Change of use of land 
from recreational space to 
cycle pump track and all 
other associated works 
(resubmission)

Proposed Cycle Track
Aber Filds Adj 'The Lant'
Builth Wells
Powys

20/1323/FUL Siting of a holiday lodge, 
installation of a sewage 
treatment plant and 
associated works

Land At Bacheiddon Farm 
Aberhosan
Machynlleth
SY20 8SG

20/0606/ELE Section 37 application 
under Electricity Act 1989 
Overhead Lines 
(exemption) Regulators 
2009 for installation of a 
overhead line to connect 
to an existing line

The Courtyard
Domgray Road
Four Crosses
SY22 6SW

Carreghofa 
Community

Approve 08/04/2020 Electricity Overhead 
Line

15/10/2020

Cadfarch 
Community

Approve 20/08/2020 Full Application 15/10/2020

Builth Wells 
Community

Approve 03/12/2019 Full Application 16/10/2020

Beguildy 
Community

Consent 02/09/2020 Householder 28/10/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
04/11/2020 14:44:18 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 2 of 17

P
age 66



Delegated List 

63 Applications

20/0767/FUL Conversion of barn to 
dwelling house and all 
associated works

Barn At Bacheldre Hall 
Churchstoke
Montgomery
SY15 6TE

20/1285/FUL Erection of steel portal 
framed building to create 
covered livestock yard 
together with all other 
associated works.

Pant Farm
Adfa
Newtown
SY16 3DF

20/1286/FUL Erection of steel portal 
framed building to create 
rear covered livestock 
yard  together with all 
other associated works

Pant Farm
Adfa
Newtown
SY16 3DF

19/1573/FUL Conversion of barn to 
create 1 no. dwelling.

Upper Tylecrwn
Llanfilo
Brecon
Powys
LD3 0UA

20/0880/FUL `Formation of access 
track and parking area for 
existing residential 
dwelling and erection of 
estate fencing

Front Lodge 
Leighton
Welshpool
SY21 8LL

Forden With 
Leighton & 
Trelystan Com

Approve 09/06/2020 Full Application 29/10/2020

Felin-Fach 
Community

Consent 26/09/2019 Full Application 30/10/2020

Dwyriw 
Community

Consent 21/08/2020 Full Application 26/10/2020

Consent 21/08/2020 Full Application 26/10/2020

Churchstoke 
Community

Approve 03/06/2020 Full Application 26/10/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
04/11/2020 14:44:18 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 3 of 17

P
age 67



Delegated List 

63 Applications

20/1382/LBC Insert lateral restraint 
anchors and DPCs in 
north gable of Building G 
at roof level; Insert 3 tie 
rods in North Gable of 
Building G at first floor 
level; Replace corrugated 
fibrecement roof covering 
on Roof Slope GRS5 in 
slate to original detail; 
Replace plastic rainwater 
goods in cast iron to 
original detail, Buildings G 
& H; Replace cement 
mortar and modern bricks 
in lime mortar and 
matching original 
brickwork, Buildings G & 
H; Remove masonry paint 
from brickwork on west 
side of south elevation of 
Building G

Buildings G And H
Leighton Centre
Leighton
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 8HJ

Approve 02/09/2020 Listed Building 
Consent

30/10/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
04/11/2020 14:44:18 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 4 of 17

P
age 68



Delegated List 

63 Applications

20/1551/TRE Works to trees - Fell one 
large ash tree on river 
bank

Swn Yr Afon
Abercegir
Machynlleth
Powys
SY20 8NR

20/1335/FUL Siting of 3 holiday pods, 
installation of sewage 
treatment plant and 
associated works

Figyn Cottage 
Figyn
Cyfronydd
Welshpool
SY21 9ES

20/1397/HH Construction of a 
domestic outbuilding 
within the residential 
curtilage

Brynaran 
Kerry
Newtown
SY16 4DW

20/0741/FUL Conversion of existing 
warehouse into 6 no 1 
Bed flats

Warehouse Adjacent To 
5 Church Street
Knighton
LD7 1AG

20/0910/FUL Change of use of 
agricultural land to open 
storage associated with 
adjacent engineering 
works including surfacing 
of site and construction of 
connecting bridge

Mile Brook 
Pitts Lane
Knighton
LD7 1LR

Knighton 
Community

Approve 26/05/2020 Full Application 29/10/2020

Approve 17/06/2020 Full Application 29/10/2020

Kerry 
Community

Consent 14/09/2020 Householder 19/10/2020

Guilsfield 
Community

Consent 21/08/2020 Full Application 30/10/2020

Glantwymyn 
Community

Approve 23/09/2020 Works to trees in 
Conservation Area

29/10/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
04/11/2020 14:44:18 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 5 of 17

P
age 69



Delegated List 

63 Applications

19/1591/FUL Demolition of existing 
workshop. Change of use 
of commercial garage loft 
to provide ancillary 
accommodation and an 
extension to the 
residential curtilage

Dol Afon 
Llanbrynmair
Powys
SY19 7AJ

20/1424/RES Reserved matters 
application for all details 
of 5 dwellings and 
formation of access

Development Southeast Of 
Rock Terrace
Llan
Llanbrynmair
Powys
SY19 7DW

20/1485/FUL Erection of an agricultural 
building to be used as a 
manure store and all 
associated works

Nant Yr Esgairwen 
Talerddig
Llanbrynmair
SY19 7AJ

20/1390/FUL Replacement windows to 
second floor level to front, 
side and rear elevation 
and new window to rear 
elevation at ground floor 
level

2 Carlton House 
Middleton Street
Llandrindod Wells
LD1 5ET

Llandrindod 
Wells 
Community

Approve 03/09/2020 Full Application 29/10/2020

Llanbrynmair 
Community

Approve 06/11/2019 Full Application 23/10/2020

Approve 25/08/2020 Reserved Matters 23/10/2020

Approve 17/09/2020 Full Application 03/11/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
04/11/2020 14:44:18 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 6 of 17

P
age 70



Delegated List 

63 Applications

20/1352/FUL Erection of a general-
purpose agricultural 
building

Penparc
Llanerfyl
Welshpool
SY21 0EL
Powys

20/1353/FUL Erection of a general-
purpose agricultural 
building

Penparc
Llanerfyl
Welshpool
Powys

20/0183/ELE Application under section 
37 of the Electricity Act 
1989 to install an 
additional electricity pole 
within an existing 11kV 
overhead electricity line

Maes Y Nant
Melin-y-ddol
Llanfair Caereinion
Powys
SY21 0EE

20/1425/VAR Discharge of Section 106 
Agreement associated 
with M/2001/1070 in 
relation to occupancy 
restrictions

11 Parc-yr-Onnen
Llanfair Caereinion
Powys
SY21 0BF

Llanfair 
Caereinion 
Community

Approve 27/01/2020 Electricity Overhead 
Line

15/10/2020

Approve 11/09/2020 Discharge/Modificatio
n of S106

30/10/2020

Llanerfyl 
Community

Approve 25/08/2020 Full Application 29/10/2020

Approve 25/08/2020 Full Application 29/10/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
04/11/2020 14:44:18 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 7 of 17

P
age 71



Delegated List 

63 Applications

20/1184/FUL Erection of General 
Purpose Agricultural 
Building together with all 
other associated works

Rhos Fawr 
Cwm Golau
Cyfronydd
SY21 9HE

20/1199/FUL Change of use of building 
from residential care 
home for children and 
young people  to a 
residential care home and 
school for children and 
young people

Y Graig
Llanfair Caereinion
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 0DB

20/1334/FUL Change of use of land to 
domestic curtilage, 
erection of a garage, 
creation of internal access 
and installation of a septic 
tank

Plot 3 
Land Adjacent To The 
Manse
Dolau
Llandrindod Wells
Powys
LD1 5TW

22/10/2020

Llanfihangel 
Rhydithon 
Community

Approve 21/08/2020 Full Application 22/10/2020

Consent 05/08/2020 Full Application 22/10/2020

Consent 21/08/2020 Full Application

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
04/11/2020 14:44:18 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 8 of 17

P
age 72



Delegated List 

63 Applications

20/1311/RES Application for reserved 
matters following the 
approval of P/2017/1389 
and 18/0447/NMA for the 
erection of a dwelling and 
all associated works

Plot 3 
Land Adjacent To The 
Manse
Dolau
Llandrindod Wells
Powys
LD1 5TW

20/1194/HH Erection of a two storey 
pitched-roof extension to 
the side of the property

Cilgwyn Bach 
Llanfyllin
SY22 5EU

20/1483/CLE Application for certificate 
of lawfulness for an 
existing use namely use 
of building and static 
caravan / chalet as  a 
single dwelling house

The Chalet
Cymru Deg 
Llanwern
Brecon 
Powys
LD3 0TL

20/1281/FUL Proposed access road in 
relation to planning 
approval P/2017/1002

Land At 
Y Gilfach Uchaf
Llanidloes
Powys

Llanidloes 
Community

Approve 11/09/2020 Full Application 03/11/2020

Llangors 
Community 
Council

Approve 25/09/2020 Certificate of 
Lawfulness - Existing

22/10/2020

Llanfyllin 
Community

Approve 13/08/2020 Householder 19/10/2020

Prior 
Approval 
Refused

20/08/2020 Reserved Matters 22/10/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
04/11/2020 14:44:18 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 9 of 17

P
age 73



Delegated List 

63 Applications

20/0577/FUL Proposed erection of an 
agricultural workers 
dwelling and garage, 
installation of sewage 
treatment plant, 
alterations to vehicular 
access and formation of 
driveway

Land At Brynaber Farm
Brynaber Farm 
Pedair-Ffordd
Oswestry
SY10 0AJ

20/1355/FUL Demolition of existing 
agricultural building and 
erection of holiday let unit, 
installation of package 
treatment plant and 
associated works

Ty Isa 
Maengwynedd
Llanrhaeadr-Ym-Mochnant
Powys
SY10 0DE

19/1572/FUL Change of use of 
agricultural building to 
B1/B8 use (storage and 
distribution) and all 
associated works

Pontypentre 
Llansantffraid-Ym-Mechain
Powys
SY22 6XP

20/1362/CLE Application for certificate 
of lawfulness for an 
existing use namely use 
of garage as a self 
contained residential unit

Court View
Deytheur
Llansantffraid-ym-mechain
Powys
SY22 6TE

Llansantffraid 
Community

Approve 15/10/2019 Full Application 15/10/2020

Approve 08/09/2020 Certificate of 
Lawfulness - Existing

30/10/2020

Llanrhaeadr-Ym-
Mochant 
Community

Approve 09/04/2020 Full Application 29/10/2020

Refused 11/09/2020 Full Application 22/10/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
04/11/2020 14:44:18 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 10 of 17

P
age 74



Delegated List 

63 Applications

20/1072/ADV Display of 30 no. non-
illuminated signs

R.S.P.B.
Lake Vyrnwy
Llanwddyn
Oswestry
Powys
SY10 0LZ

20/1091/FUL Refurbishment of Chapel 
to reinstate visitor centre, 
demolition of shop and 
erection of a replacement. 
Erection of an extension 
and alterations to 
Education Centre. 
Change of use and 
alterations of meeting 
room in RSPB offices to 
provide a temporary shop. 
Alterations to vehicular 
and pedestrian access, 
landscaping, installation 
of signage and all 
associated works.

The Lake Vyrnwy 
Experience 
Bethel Chapel, Education 
Centre And RSPB Offices 
Llanwddyn
Oswestry
SY10 0LZ

Llanwddyn 
Community

Approve 24/07/2020 Advertisement 
Consent

15/10/2020

Consent 27/07/2020 Full Application 22/10/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
04/11/2020 14:44:18 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 11 of 17

P
age 75



Delegated List 

63 Applications

20/1092/CAC Demolition of shop 
extension

Bethel Chapel
Llanwddyn
Oswestry
SY10 0LZ

20/1108/FUL Formation of car parking 
area together with road 
and drainage 
improvements

Car Park At Lake Vyrnwy
Llanwddyn
Powys

20/1506/TPO Application for works to 
trees subject to a Tree 
Preservation Order

Knowle House
6 The Paddock
Llanyre
Powys 
LD1 6NG

20/1645/CLE Section 191 application to 
establish full residency 
status

Cabin 2 
Garth Holiday Park
Garth Road
Machynlleth
Powys
SY20 8HQ

Machynlleth 
Community

Approve 07/10/2020 Certificate of 
Lawfulness - Existing

29/10/2020

15/10/2020

Llanyre 
Community

Consent 16/09/2020 Works to Trees 
subject to a TPO

03/11/2020

Consent 27/07/2020 Conservation Area 
Consent

22/10/2020

Consent 28/07/2020 Full Application

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
04/11/2020 14:44:18 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 12 of 17

P
age 76



Delegated List 

63 Applications

20/1146/ELE Application made under 
Section 37 of Electricity 
Act 1989: overhead lines 
exemption regulations 
2009 for underground 
three spans of overhead 
conductor

Land At Meifod
Powys

20/1083/FUL Conversion and 
alterations of building 
from a 'Service Garage' to 
a dwellinghouse (involving 
demolition of front part of 
building ) and all 
associated works

Service Garage
High Street
Meifod
Powys
SY22 6DB

20/0541/VAR Discharge of Section 106 
agreement associated 
with M/2004/0408 
(outline) and M/2007/0090 
(reserved matters)

Rowan House (formerly 
Land Adj To Hollybrook 
House)
Montgomery
Powys
SY15 6PP

20/1191/FUL Construction of a light 
industrial unit, where 
there is currently a 
concrete yard

Unit 29 
Mochdre Industrial Estate
Newtown
SY16 4LE

Newtown And 
Llanllwchaiarn 
Community

Approve 30/07/2020 Full Application 23/10/2020

Montgomery 
Community

Consent 27/03/2020 Discharge/Modificatio
n of S106

02/11/2020

Meifod 
Community

Approve 13/07/2020 Electricity Overhead 
Line

16/10/2020

Consent 13/07/2020 Full Application 30/10/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
04/11/2020 14:44:18 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 13 of 17

P
age 77



Delegated List 

63 Applications

20/1516/DEM Demolition of building Greenhaus Garage
Newtown
Powys
SY16 3AH

19/2060/REM Section 73 application for 
the variation of condition 2 
from planning permission 
P/2017/1355 regarding 
revised designs.

Penderw
Old Radnor
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2RP

20/0998/FUL Conversion of 3 
agricultural buildings into 
dwellings, formation of 
new access road, 
installation of septic tanks 
and all associated works

Llanbwchllyn 
Llandeilo Graban
Builth Wells
LD2 3YQ

20/0307/FUL Application for the 
conversion and extension 
of Rhosgoch Mill Barn to 
create upgraded ancillary 
domestic accommodation 
on the ground floor and a 
holiday let on the upper 
ground floor.

The Mill
Rhosgoch
Builth Wells
Powys
LD2 3JY

Painscastle 
Community

Approve 02/07/2020 Full Application 23/10/2020

Consent 18/03/2020 Full Application 30/10/2020

Old Radnor 
Community

Consent 16/12/2019 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

28/10/2020

Permitted 
Developm
ent

05/10/2020 Demolition Notification 28/10/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
04/11/2020 14:44:18 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 14 of 17

P
age 78



Delegated List 

63 Applications

20/0308/LBC Application for the 
conversion and extention 
of Rhosgoch Mill Barn to 
create upgraded ancillary 
domestic accommodation 
on the ground floor and a 
holiday let on the upper 
ground floor.

The Mill
Rhosgoch
Builth Wells
Powys
LD2 3JY

20/1203/FUL Formation of new level 
access door way to 
school room and creation 
of level access ramp 
(resubmission of 
19/1246/FUL)

The Pales 
Llandegley
Llandrindod Wells
LD1 5UH

20/1507/HH Erection of a side 
extension and alterations 
to existing access

Trewern Villa
Llandegley
Llandrindod Wells
Powys
LD1 5UF

20/1159/FUL Change of use from A1 
(shop) To A3 (food and 
drink) and external 
alterations to include the 
installation of a fan duct

The Little Shop 
Hereford Street
Presteigne
LD8 2AT

Presteigne 
Community

Approve 13/08/2020 Full Application 29/10/2020

Penybont 
Community

Approve 04/08/2020 Full Application 29/10/2020

Approve 22/09/2020 Householder 03/11/2020

Consent 18/03/2020 Listed Building 
Consent

30/10/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
04/11/2020 14:44:18 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 15 of 17

P
age 79



Delegated List 

63 Applications

20/1415/TPO Works to three trees Green Acres
Norton Manor Park
Norton
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2EG

20/1598/TRE Removal of 12 leylandii 
trees

Ivy House
10 Hereford Street
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2AR

20/0501/HH Erection of an extension Glebelands
Tregynon
Newtown
Powys
SY16 3EH

20/1177/HH Erection of a wall/fence 1 Little Henfaes Drive
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 7BG

20/1550/TPO Works to trees T1-T7 Bron Y Buckley Woods
Welshpool
SY21 7NQ

Welshpool 
Community

Approve 11/08/2020 Householder 20/10/2020

Approve 29/09/2020 Works to Trees 
subject to a TPO

28/10/2020

Tregynon 
Community

Approve 21/08/2020 Householder 16/10/2020

Approve 21/09/2020 Works to Trees 
subject to a TPO

23/10/2020

Approve 30/09/2020 Works to trees in 
Conservation Area

28/10/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
04/11/2020 14:44:18 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 16 of 17

P
age 80



Delegated List 

63 Applications

20/1197/HH Demolition of the 
conservatory and erection 
of a rear extension

Swn-Yr-Afon 
Heol Giedd
Ystradgynlais
SA9 1LP

20/1456/HH Erection of an extension The Babyhouse
103 Brecon Road
Ystradgynlais
Abertawe
Powys
SA9 1QL

20/1399/HH Construction of garden 
wall

Ty Gwyn
48 Ynyscedwyn Road
Ystradgynlais
Swansea
SA9 1BH

Applicati 63

Ystradgynlais 
Community

Approve 04/09/2020 Householder 30/10/2020

Approve 11/09/2020 Householder 28/10/2020

Approve 23/09/2020 Householder 03/11/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
04/11/2020 14:44:18 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 17 of 17

P
age 81



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

PLANNING, TAXI LICENSING AND RIGHTS OF WAY COMMITTEE 
12th November 2020 

 
REPORT BY:  Head of Highways, Transport and Recycling 
 
SUBJECT:  Proposed new public path Orders for bridleway 75 and footpaths 

3, 6, 56 and 71 Ystradgynlais and abandonment of 2008 Orders  
 

 
REPORT FOR: DECISION 
______________________________________________________________ 

 
Title: Proposed new public path Orders for bridleway 75, footpaths 3, 6, 56 and 71 
Ystradgynlais; abandonment of 2008 public path Orders. 
 
Background: 
This report proposes a solution to long-standing problems in relation to public rights of way 
adjoining the haul road to the former Brynhenllys Opencast Coal site, Ystradgynlais. The 
site is at OS Grid Reference SN 779,109. 
 
A plan of the proposed changes to the public rights of way network is shown on the plan at 
appendix A. The overall aims of the package are to: 
 

 Move bridleway 75, onto an alignment that is considered to be more convenient for the 
public than the existing legal line of the bridleway; 

 Move footpath 6, so that it is moved from a crossing point over the Nant Gwrach gorge 
that is wide, deep and steep-sided to the footbridge that has been in place and in use 
across the Nant Gwrach for over 20 years; 

 Facilitate land management by moving parts of footpath 6 and bridleway 75 onto field 
edge routes; 

 Carry out practical improvement works to ensure that bridleway 75 is on a surface that 
is better drained and less boggy than the existing route; 

 Remove sections of path that are no longer needed for public use as a result of the above 
proposals, namely footpath 71 and a short spur of footpath 56.  

 
Legal issues: 
This site has a complex legal history. Whilst the Brynhenllys Opencast Coal site was 
operational and for some years afterwards, several public rights of way (including bridleway 
75) were suspended under the Opencast Coal Act 1958 and alternative routes were 
provided. This suspension was lifted in 2014.  
 
When the suspension was lifted, the public rights of way reverted to their legal lines. 
However, the upper (western) part of the alternative route for bridleway 75 has remained in 
use with the permission of the landowner, as it is considered to be more convenient and 
enjoyable for the public than the legal line.  
 
A package of public path Orders (appendices B, C and D) was made in 2008; these were 
opposed. On review, technical issues were identified that prevented the Council from being 
able to submit the Orders to the Planning Inspectorate for determination.  
 

Page 83

7



Following that, it became apparent that the whole package of changes needed to be 
reviewed and revised. This has allowed for the diversion of bridleway 75 onto the alternative 
route to be accommodated into the same package. The technical issues in the 2008 Orders 
has been addressed and some minor changes are proposed to footpath 3, to align the legal 
line with the used route on the ground.  
 
Consultation: 
Before formal consultation was carried out, detailed discussions were held with the owners 
of the land concerned and with Ystradgynlais Town Council. There are three separate 
landowners affected by the proposals. These discussions resulted in the revised proposals 
shown on the plan at appendix A. 
 
Formal pre-Order consultation was carried out in August 2019 for the revised proposals. 
Comments were invited from the Town Council, Local Members, path user groups, utility 
companies, Natural Resources Wales and others. Some questions were asked about the 
detail of the practical work needed to make the new paths ready for use, but no objections 
were received. 
 
External grant funding has been secured to carry out the work required to make the new 
paths ready for use in the 2020-21 financial year. The work includes: 
 

 Improvements to the surface and drainage of the proposed route of bridleway 75, which 
crosses naturally wet ground; 

 Upgrading the path furniture along the proposed routes of footpaths 3 and 6 and 
bridleway 75, to ensure that gates are in place that are accessible and can be opened 
and closed easily; 

 Remedial work to improve the bridge on footpath 6 and the adjoining steps.  
 
Options: 
It is not considered that the 2008 package of Orders could be forwarded to the Planning 
Inspectorate for determination, due to the technical issues and because the proposals no 
longer fulfil the aspirations of the landowner or the community. As such, abandonment of 
these Orders is the only feasible option. 
 
If new public path Orders are not made, footpath 6 would remain crossing the Nant Gwrach 
at a location where it is not feasible cross the gorge or install a footbridge.  
 
Diverting the paths at a later date would be an option, but there is no certainty that funding 
will be available for the work needed to make the new paths ready for use. Given this, it is 
recommended that the proposals at appendix A be pursued now, whilst funding is available. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
1. That new public path Orders be made in respect of the proposals shown on the plan at 

appendix A. 
2. That the 2008 package of diversion and extinguishment Orders (as at appendices B, C 

and D) be abandoned. 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix A – Plan of the revised diversion and extinguishment proposals 
Appendix B - Public path extinguishment Order 2008, footpath 56 Ystradgynlais 
Appendix C - Public path diversion Order 2008, footpath 6 Ystradgynlais 
Appendix D - Public path diversion Order 2008, bridleway 75 Ystradgynlais 

Page 84



(((((((((((((((((((((((((

B

G

H

I

C

A

K

P

R

S

M
L

DE

F

N

Q

T

J O

Footpath 36

Footpath 
24

Footpath 6

Footpath 3

F
o
o
tp

a
th

4

F
o
o
tp

a
th

 5
1

BOAT 7

B
O

A
T

 2
0

Cyngor Sir County Council

Printed by: 

FOOTPATH TO
BE CREATED

FOOTPATH TO
BE EXTINGUISHED

barness Date 19/03/2019

KEY TO NOTATION

EXISTING FOOTPATH
UNAFFECTED

EXISTING BRIDLEWAY
UNAFFECTED

P E

P D



Proposed public path diversion and extinguishment Orders:
Public footpaths 3, 6, 56, and 71 and bridleway 75 (parts)
Community of Ystradgynlais        Scale 1:5000         OSGR SN 779,109

© Crown copyright and database rights 2019 Ordnance Survey 100025371
© Hawlfraint y Goron a hawliau cronfa ddata 2019 Arolwg Ordnans 100025371

Additional information © Powys County Council 2019 No additional copies should be made without the permission of the Council.
Gwybodaeth ychwanegol © Cyngor Sir Powys 2019 Ni ddylid gwneud unrhyw gopïau ychwanegol heb ganiatâd y Cyngor.

A C

A B K L Q N

BRIDLEWAY TO
BE CREATED

BRIDLEWAY TO
BE EXTINGUISHED

M T

M N

RESTRICTED BYWAY
UNAFFECTED

BYWAY OPEN TO ALL 
TRAFFIC UNAFFECTED

O D R

H F

R I

L G

S K F J

C F
D E

Footpath 71

P
age 85



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 87



P
age 88



P
age 89



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



P
age 94



Page 95



Page 96



P
age 97



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Planning applications for consideration by the Committee
	4.2 19/2055/FUL Pantoityn, Tirabad, Llangammarch Wells, LD4 4DP
	19_2055_FUL-LOCATION_PLAN

	5 Decisions of the Head of Property, Planning and Public Protection  on Delegated Applications
	Delegated List - 15.10.20 to 03.11.20

	7 Proposed new public path Orders for bridleway 75 and footpaths 3, 6, 56 and 71 Ystradgynlais and abandonment of 2008 Orders
	Appendix A Diversion & extinguishment proposals FPs3,6,56,71 & BW75
	Appendix B Extinguishment Order 2008 FP56
	Appendix C Diversion Order 2008 FP6
	Appendix D Diversion Order 2008 BW75


